
 

 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee  AGENDA 
 
 

DATE: 

 

Wednesday 6 November 2013 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Room 5, 

Harrow Civic Centre 

 
 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 

   

  Chair: 

 

Councillor Sue Anderson  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Chris Mote 
Anthony Seymour 
 

Graham Henson 
 

Mano Dharmarajah 
 

 
 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Amir Moshenson 
2. Marilyn Ashton 
 

1. Jerry Miles 
2. Phillip O'Dell 
 

1. Zarina Khalid 
 
  

 

Contact:  Manize Talukdar, Democratic & Electoral Services Officer 

Tel:  020 8424 1323    E-mail:  manize.talukdar@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 November 2013 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Sub-Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN    
 
 To appoint a Vice-Chair for the 2013/14 Municipal Year. 

 
4. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2013 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

7. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL AND OTHER COMMITTEES/PANELS    
 
 To receive any references from Council and/or other Committees or Panels. 

 
8. PROCUREMENT STRATEGY UPDATE   (Pages 9 - 16) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Resources. 

 



 

Performance and Finance Scrutiny Sub-Committee - 6 November 2013 

 
9. BUSINESS CONTINUITY UPDATE   (Pages 17 - 24) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Resources. 

 
10. CORPORATE EQUALITIES OBJECTIVES - ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT   

(Pages 25 - 102) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning. 

 
11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
12. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 

item of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential 
information in breach of an obligation of confidence, or of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972: 
  
Agenda 
Item No 
 

Title Description of Exempt Information 

 13. ICT Service    Information under paragraph 3 of 
Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information). 

 
 

 AGENDA - PART II   
 

13. ICT SERVICE   (Pages 103 - 124) 
 
 Report of the Director of Customer Services and Business Transformation. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�

� ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������������������� ��������

�
�
�

���������	�
���
�����	�


	������
���	��������




�������

�

��
��������
����

�
�
��������	� ����������	�����	�
� � �
�
����
��	�
�

�� ��	�� !������"�!�
�� #��!���$�	��	��
�

�� �������!�	��	�%�&�
�� �	�!�	����������
�

��  �	�����������������	��
%�&���� �	�����
���'�������(����)����������
��  �	��������*�'�����
�)���
�
�

����� �����������
�����������
�����������������
��
�������������
�
����� �!	� � +!��� 	� �

����	
�� ,�!� ���	
*� ���
������ (�*�� �-./� �	��
��**�,	'�	���
���	�����!����	���)��)��#����/���,���	������!������	
**����
�!���������	���	�!�	����������!������	�����	��������!���������������
	��*�
��������	
**����+�	����������	�����*�0����	-��1��,����*���	������!�����
	�,��!����	�,��*���������	������� �!��	�2������	'���� �!��0)��)�,��	��
�
���	����������-� � +!�� ������������� �*�
�������	
**��� �����	�����	�
����!��������!��������	�����!������	'-�
�

����� "�����������#������$������������
�
����� �!	� � +�� 	���� �!�� ����	��	
�� ��� �!������	'� ��� �!�� ��**�,	'� ��*��
����	����(����)���������3��
�
0��	������������
�

(����)���������
�

���	
**����!�������� ���	
**����������!�	��	�
�
�

Agenda Item 4
Pages 1 to 8

1



�

����4��� � ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	�����������������������������������

��%�� !�������
���
��&����������
�
����� �!	��+��	�����!����!����**�,	'�	��������,������
*����3�
�
�'�	���1����5�6�(�����	
�����������	
*��	��0�!������������7��	�*��
���	
**���#��!���$�	��	���
*�������	�	���
�	���� 	������� 	� �!���!��!���
���	� ������*�� $�*���� ���� ��������	
�/� ��������� ���)
��� �	�� ����������
���)
��� ,!�	� �!��  ������� (�
�)���� �*�	�� !��� ���	� �'����-� � $�� ,��*��
����	�	��!�������,!*����!���������,���
�	��������	��)��������	-�
�
�'�	��� 1���� ��� 6� ���*��� ���)
��� ����*�	��� �		��*� (������ %��
�*� �����
0	*�&�
���	
**��� ���� �	�����	� ��
*����� �� 	�	���
�	���� 	������� 	� �!��� !��� ��	�
,���	���
����������*����
�*�����-���!��,��*������	�	��!�������,!*����!��
�������,���
�	��������	��)��������	-�
�

��'�� ����������
�
����� �!	��+!����!���	���������!������	'�!�*���	����8�*������������9�	�
���������	���'	��������
����
����
���-�
�

����� (�����)�����
�������(�����
�����
�
����� �!	��+��	�����!���	�����*
�:�����	��,�������/���������	����
�)��-�
�

��*�� �������������
���
����������������
��������+(�������
�
+!��������������� ��
�)��� �!�� ��**�,	'�(�����	
�� ����� �!��#�)��	��	��
����� �	�� (�9���	�'���	�� ��������� %#�(��&3� 1+�  ������� (�
�)���� 6�
(����������!�� ��
�������������������)
����	��;��	����+��	��������	-��1��
,���	����� �!��� �� ����!��� ������� �	� �!�� ���
�,��*�� ��� ��������� ��� �� �������
����	'�����!��������������-�
�
����� �!	��+!����!��(�����	
�������#�(������	����-�
�

����� �!�&,������
�

��-�� �����.�����
�����
�
+!�����������������
�)������������,!
!���������������
�	�����������!��
�!��� �	
�� �!�� *���� ����	'� ��� �!�� ��������	
�� �	�� �	�	
�� �
���	��
������������-���
�
����������2��������
�	
��	��!����!������������	���������/�,!
!�	�!��)�,�
,�����9���	�
���������!��*�)�*�������������	'������	���	�$����,/�!������	�
����)��� ����� �!�� ���������� �
���
���-� � +!�� �!��� ��)���� �!��� �!�� �����

�	�	���� ��� ��� *����� �	� �!�� ������������<�� ,��
!� *��-� � +!��  ��
���� ���
�	�	
�� �	�� ������	
�� 
�	������ �!��� �!�� ,��� �� 9��� 	�
����� �!��� ,��*��

�	�	�����������	�����-�
�

2



�

��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������������������� ����=���

��**�,	'�:�����	���������������/��!���!�����)�����!�����������*�
�������
��� 	
*����� �	� �!�� ,��
!� *��� ,���� ��	����� ��**�,	'� �2��	�)�� ��
����	�
���,��	� �
���	�� >���� �������� �	�� ���
���� �	�� �	� �!�� ����� ��� ,!
!�
��:����� ����!��� 	)���'���	� �	����	���	'/� ��
���	'� �	� �!����,!���� �!��
�������������,��*�� !�)�� �!����2���� ���
�-� ��!�� ������ �!�������� ���
�!�� ���
�� �	� �!�� ,��
!� *��� ,��*�� �*������ !�)�� ���	� 
�	������� ��� ���!�
���	��� �	�� �!�� 1����)���	�� ;�����-� +!�� �!��<�� ;���	'� ,��*�� ����**��

�	�����,!��!��������)�,��	�����/������� �� ������!�**�	'����	�*�����������
��!����
��	-�
�
����� �!	��+!����!������������	����-�
�

��/�� ��$�����������������
���
���0�)���������%��'������
�
+!�� ������������� ��
�)��� �� ������� ��� �!��  ��
���� ��� �	�	
�� �	��
������	
�/� ,!
!� !��� ���	� ���)���*�� 
�	������� ��� ���	��� �	�
������������� ����-� � +!��  ��
���� !'!*'!���� �!�� ��**�,	'� ������ ��� �!��
������3�
�

•� �������)	'��!������	�(�#� ������ 	� �!�� ������� ������������ �������
�!���� *���� ��)	'�� ���'���� ,���� �!�� ��	
��*� �����	� ���� �!�� ����
����
�)�����	���������������������?�

�

•� �!���� ,��� �	� �)���**� �	�� ��� ����� ����
���� �)�����	�� ��� ��� 	� �����
���)
�������?�

�

•� �!����,�����@���
�	�	'�	
����	������,�*�������*����������/�����
�**��
�	��!����	��!���	������
!����2��
����*�)�*�?�

�

•� �!���� ,��� �� �'	�
�	�� �	���� ���	�� �	� �!�� #�	���*� ��	�� �����*�
���'�������	�����
����!������	���:�������������)�����������*��
�
����
���	'�	��!��������-�

�
�� ������� :������ ,!��!��� �!�� �)��� ���	�� 	� �!�� >������ ���	����� ,��� �	�
��������� �'���-� � +!��  ��
���� ��)���� �!��� �!�� �	�*� �'���� ,��*�� 	��� )����
�'	�
�	�*��������!���������-��+!�����������9�����������������*�	����������
��� �!��+��
!���<���	�����	�� �!���!�����**� 	� 	
�������� ��� �!�� ���*�
���	����
�)�	��$������
!��*��������$����,-� �+!�� ��
������)���� �!��� �!�� 	������
	
���� �!�����**� ,��� �� �'	�
�	�� *���� �	�� �*�	�� ���� �!�� ������� ���� ��� �!��
+��
!���<���	����,��*���!���*��������������������	������������)�*-�
�
+!��������� �2�������� 
�	
��	� �!��� �'�����	�� !��� 	��� ���	� ���
!��� �	�
��*���	�	'� �!�� ���
�	
�� ��)	'�� ,!
!� !��� ���	� ��	����� 	� �!��
������*��� �	�� �'����� ��� ���	
*-� � $�� ������ �!��� ���	�	'� �����
�*�� !���
���	� ���� 	� �*�
�� �
����� �!�� �	���� ���	
*� �	�� �!��*�� ���*�� ��� �**�
��������	����:��**�-��+!�� ��
�����'������!����!��,����	�������	����	�����
��	
�*�� �	�� ��)���� �!��� �	�� ����� 	� �!��������*��� !��� ���	� ��*����� �	��
�!��� ��
����	�� ,���� �	'�	'� ,�!� �!�� ������ ��� ��*���	�� �!�� ��)	'��
��	����-� �$�������� �!��� �!����!������	��	��)�����	�� 	� �!��������*��� 	�
����7��/������!����!��!������	�����*��)�*�����**������	��!������	�����������
�	�������	����*��,!���� 	��!�����	
*-� �+!�� ��
�����	������9������������

3



�

�������� � ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	�����������������������������������

����� ����*��� ������� � ��� �!�� ������������� 	� A������� �� ��'���	'� �!��
�)�����	��	��!��������*��-�
�
�� ������� ������� �!��/� 	� �!�� ������/� �������� ,��*�� �	�� �� !�*���*� �� �!��
�����	�*�
����	�����
��	�����!��������+�����	�	
�*�������'�����'�����
��	���	'����*�����)����'�����������*�������,!���������� �!����)	'��,����
������� 	��� ��� ��� �
!�)��*�-� � +!��  ��
���� �	������9� ��� ���)��� �!��
	�������	�	���������������-�
�
+!�� ������� :������ �!�� ��)	'�� 	� >�'�*� �	�� #�)��	�	
�� ��*����� ��� �!��
	�������	�����:��	
�����
������������	'�-��+!�� ��
������)�����!����!��
	��	��	� ,��� ��� �	�*��� �!�� 	������ �	�� ���:��	
�� ��� ����	'�� ������� �!��
��	
��*� ��*�	���� ���� ����7�B� ,��� �'����� �	�� �	������9� ��� ���)��� �	�
���������'���	'��!������������������	'�����!��������������-�
�
+!��  ��
���� ������ �!��� �!�� ���	
*<�� �	�	
�*� �����	� 	� ���B7�.� ,��*��
����	��	�*��'��������	��!��*�)�*�������	
*�+�2�����	�������������B��	���!��
>�
�*�#�)��	��	���	�	
������*���	���������B-�
�
���������:�������!��@=�=9��	�������	��	���������!���)����
!�)���	�����
���9	'� �	���
���	�� 	
���-� � +!�� ��
������)���� �!��� �!�� !����*��� ���	�
�!�� 
���� 	� ����7��-� � +!�� ������� ��9��� ,!��� ��������	� ��� �!�� ���9	'�
	
����,������� �����+C��	���
���	�� �
��	-� �+!�� ��
������)���� �!�����
*��'����������	�����!��	
����,���'�	�����������	������������
�)�*���	���	��
������ �!��� �!�� �
�)��� ,��� �	�����9�	� ��� �!�� ���	
*� 	� ������ ��� �	�����
�����
��*�,����!����!�	����'�	������	
���-�
�
�� ������� :������ ,!��!��� ���*�� ���)
��� ,��*�� !�)�� ��
������ ��� �!��

�	�	'�	
�� ��	�-� � +!��  ��
���� ��)���� �!��� �!�� ,��� �!�� 
���� �	�� �!���
����'���!
� '��,�!� 	� $����,� !��� 
�	�������� ��� ���'������ ���������� 	�
���*�����)
��-��+!���!���:������,!���!��*9�*�����
������!��������'���!
�
���������/� �!��
��������2��	��	���� �!��>�'�*����
�
���	����!��� ������!���
	������	� �������	��	����'������'�	��-� �+!�� ��
������)���� �!��� �!�� �!��
	������ ��� ������ ���	�����	'� �)��� ��**�,	'� �!�� ���'��� ��� �!�� �!����� *�'�*�
���
�
�� �	�� �!�� ���	����� ��� !��*�!� ���)
��� ��� �!�� ���	
*� ���� !�)�� ���	�
!'!����!�	��	�
�������	��
�	��������	
�������1+�
�����-� �+!���
�	�����
��� �
�*�� �	�
������ ��� �!�� ��*���	����	� ��� ����� ��*
��� ��
!� ��� �!��
���'��� ��� �!�� *�'�*� ���
�
�� �	�� ����
��	� 	� 	������ �	�� ���:��	
�� ���
����	'�� ,��*�� !�)�� �� 
���*��)�� ����
�� �	�� ,��*�� ��� ���*���� 	� �������
�����-�
�
+!���!���:������,!���!��	
�������'���������!��
�����
�*����	����$��
!�
D	�� ���*/� �!��$����,������ ��	���/� �!����������	�� �!�� ;�		����� �������
,��*��	���������-��+!�� ��
������������!����!����,����*������)	'��,!
!�!���
���	��*�''������������
���-�
�
�� ������� ��9��� ������ �!�� *���� ��)	'�� ��	����� 	� �'�	
�� 
����� �	��
)�
�	
�� ��	�'���	�-� � +!��  ��
���� ��)���� �!��� �!�� ���� ��� �'�	
�� ������
���	�*�����	�����)	'��	��!���!�������������	���	��!��*�	'�����-��+!����������
���*��	'�
�	��*��	���,����	����
�	�	�������)�,-�
�
����� �!	��+!����!������������	����-�

4



�

��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������������������� ��������

��1�� ������������2����������$������
��������"��������
���%��%��'���
�
+!��������������� ��
�)��� �� ������� ��� �!������������ ��
���� ����!*���	�
�	�� ���*��� ,!
!� ���� ���� �!�� ���������� �!*���	� �	�� ���*��� ���)
���

���*�	����		��*����������������7��-�
�
�� ������� ��9��� ������ �!�� ������	���� �	�� 	������ ��� �!�� ���'�� �!����

���*�	��-���	����
�����)�����!����!����,����������	�	�*��
���*�2�
�����
,!
!�,���� ��*����� ��������������'����	'� �����-� �$�������� �!����)��� �!��
�����		�������/��!��0�������	�!���	�����!�*���	��
���*�	����'�	����!��
���	
*-��+!�����	������	��!�������9���!���	������	����������!�����	
*/�
!�,�)��/��**�
���*�	���,������9�	�������*�/��!����,������'������
���*�	���
!�	�*	'����
������	��*�
���	�������������������*��
��	�,�����9�	-�
�
+!�����������9���!�,�$����,<����������	
��	��!�������
�������������!���
>�	��	� ���!�����-� � +!�� ���
��� ��)���� �!��� $����,<�� ��������	
�� ,���
�)���'��
�������� �����!���>�	��	����!�����-� �$�,�)��/�$����,����*�����
���
���� ��� :��*��� ������	
�� ��� �**� �����	���� ��� 
���*�	��� �	�� 	��� �**�
���!��������� �!�-� �$�����!������ �!��/��)���**/� �!��
���*�	��� �����,����
�9**��/�!�����
�)��������	�*����		'�	�
�����������)
��/����9�������
�)��
������
!� �	�� �	������9� ������	� ,��9/� ,!
!� ����
��� �!�� 	������ ����

���*�	�����	'���
�*����-�
�
�	����
���������!*���	��	�����*����������!���	������	�������������		'/���
�����!������	�	�����
���������������!����������
�����	����*
���	���!����!���
���	����'	�
�	������)���	��	��!�����	
*<����*���������*�����
�)�*��,�!�
*�,���*�)�*�
���*�	��-�
�
�� ������� ��9��� ,!��!��� �!�� ��
�	�� ����
��	� 	� ������
��� �	�� *���� ���
���'����� ���)
��� !��� 
������ �� ���� 	� 
���*�	��-� � �	� ���
��� ��)���� �!���
����� 
��	
*�����	���!�)���� ��������*'�*��� 
������ ���� �!�������)
����	��
�!���$����,�!������	��	������!����������!�����������*���	���!�-�
�
�� ������� ��9��� !�,� �!�� ���'���� ���� ���� 
���*�	��� ����
��	� ���� ����7�B�
,��*�� �����������-� � +!�� ���
��� ��)���� �!��� 	�� ���
�
� ���'���� !��� ���	�
���/� �	�� �!��� �!�� ����
��	� ,��*�� ��� ��*��)�� ��� �!�� 	������ ��� 
���*�	���
��
�)��-��+!�����������''�������!���������
��	� 	��!���)���**����
�	��'��
�'!���������������
������!����������	'����'���-���
�
����� �!	��+!����!������������	����-�
�

��3�� "��������$������
��������"��������
���4�
���������
�#5�%��%��'���
�
+!�� ������������� ��
�)��� �� ������� ��� �!�� ����������  ��
���� ���
�����	��/�$��*�!�E�F�**�;�	'�,!
!��������� �!���������������*������)
���

���*�	����		��*��������%��
�*�
�����	*�&�����7��-�
�
�	����
�����)�����!�����)�
�
���������� 	�!��*�!��	�����*����
�*�
����!���
���	� �� 9��� ��)�*����	�-� � $�� ������ �!��� $����,� ,��� �!�� �	*�� >�	��	�
���!��������!�)��
���	������!��*�!��	����
�*�
������)�
���<������-�
�

5



�

�������� � ��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	�����������������������������������

�� ������� ��:������� �!��� ������� �������� �!��*�� ���)��� �� ����9��,	� ���

���*�	���	������������)����/�-�-�,!��!����!��
���*�	�����*���������	������
��"��� ������ �	�� ,!��!��� �	�� ���
�	
��� 	� ���)
�� ���)��	� !��� ���	�
��	����-� � +!�� ���
��� ��)���� �!��� �!�� G*���		'� *����	�7���
�
��
����)���	��<���
��	���� �!���������������)��� �!�� *�)�*���� 	�������	-� �$��
�������!����**�
���*�	���,������9�����������	��')�	������	'-��+,�	����)��
����
�	�����
�����
��*��������
��������
���*�2��	���!������	����
��*�����
���
������������'!����,���-������*�2�
�����,�����!�����!�����:�����	����
�������	��������/�*�'�*���)
���	����*���'�	
��	)�*)���	�-�
�
�����������9���,!��!��/�	�)�,�����!�����������
!���/��!����,����	��
��
���	���	� �	�� �)��)�,� ��� �!�� 
���*�	�������� ���
�*�� ��� �!�� 
��	
*� �	��
�!��������� ���
�*�� ��� �!��� ������ ���)����/� ,!�� !��� �!��� �,	� 
���*�	���
���
������-��+!�����
�����)�����!����!����,������)��	��������)
������������

���*�	����
�*������!��
������	���������)
��/�	��!��
�����!�����	
*��	��
�!��� �!�����	
*� !���:������*������	'��,�!� ��)�
�
�� ���)����� �����	����
���)
�����)��	-�
�
�	� ���
��� ����!��� ��)���� �!��� �!�� �������� ������� ,��*�� �	����� �!��� �!����
,���������	�*�:��*���������	
�����������	��*�
�/��	����
�*�,��9�����	��

���� ��	�'���� ,��*�� ��� ��*'��� ��� �	����� �!��� �	�� 
���� ���)���� ,���
����	'� �!�� 	����� ��� �!�� ���)
�� �����/� ,!*�� ,��9	'� 	� ��	���� ,�!�

�����
�*����)��������
�������)
��-�
�
���������:�������!��	
������	�
���*�	�����*��	'����G��*
�7*�'�*7�	�	
�*�
��
��	<��	�����G:��*���������)
����*)����%���	�����&<��	
������-���	����
���
��)���� �!��� �!����
���*�	��� ��*������)��,!�*�	'*�� ��� �!�� ��*���	����	�
��� �!�� ������ 
!��'��� ��*
�-� � $�� ������ �!��/� !����
�**�/� �!�� 	������ ���

���*�	��� ��
�)��� 	
������� ,!�	� ��*
�� 
!�	'��� ,���� ��*���	���-��
$�,�)��/�	�	������!����
���*�	���!������	��������������!��0�������	����
���	� ��!�*�-� � +!�� ��*
�� !��� ���	� ������*�� 
�	��*���� �	� ����� ���
��*���	����	� �	�� �!�� ���
��� ��������� �������� ��� �!�� *���		'� ��
��	�
��'���	'��!��������
!��'�����*
��	��!��������-���
�
+!��������� ��9���,!��!��� �!�� 	
������ 	� �!�� 	������ ��� 
���*�	��� ,���

�)���������!�����'������,��*����:���������	�*���	��-��+!�����
�����)����
�!��� �!��
���*�	�����	�'���	�� �����,����!'!*���9**����	�� ���	����	�� ��
!��� 	��� ���	� 	�
������� ��� ���9� �2���	�*� !�*�� ��� ���*�)�� �	�� ��� �!�� !'!*��

���*�2� 
���*�	��� �!��� !��� ���	� ��
�)��-� �$�� ������ �!��� �!�� 	������ ���

���*�	����)���**�!�������
����	
��A��������-�
�
��������� ��9���,!��� �!�� ������	
��,��� ���,��	� �!���� 
���*�	��� ,!
!�
!��� ���	� ��!�*�� �	�� �!���� ,!
!� !��� ���	� �����**�� ��!�*�-� � +!�� ���
���
��)���� �!��� �� �� 
���*�	�� !��� ��)���*� ����	��/� �	�� �	*�� �!�� )���� �������
����
�������!����,������!�*�/��!�	���,��*�����*�������������**����!�*�-��$��
�������!��� ��,����� *�'�*��)����:�����	���!���
���*�	������
���'������	�
�!��,��-�
�
��������,�����*������ ���	���� �!��� �!����!������	��� �'	�
�	�� ���� 	� �!��
	���������
���*��	�����
�)��-�
�
����� �!	��+!����!������������	����-�

6



�

��������	
���	���	�	
���
���	����������������������������������� ��������

�
%H���3��+!������	'/�!�)	'�
����	
�������-�����/�
*��������=-�.���&-�
�
�
�
�
�
%�'	��&���0IH�1>>0(��ID��H D(�0H�
�!���
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY 

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

6 November 2013 

Subject: 

 

Procurement Strategy Update 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting, Corporate Director of 
Resources 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Jerry Miles, Policy Lead 
Member  
& Councillor Amir Moshenson, 
Performance Lead Member 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

 

Enclosures: 

 

 
Appendix A – Staffing structure for 
Commercial, Contracts and 
Procurement Division 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
This report sets out a position statement following the first 6 weeks of 
implementation of the revised Commercial, Contracts and Procurement  
Division structure and provides a programme of work to the end of the current 
financial year 

 
Recommendations: None, for information purposes only 
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 9 to 16

9



 

Section 2 – Report 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The Council invested extra money into its Procurement function in 2010 

and ran for two and a half years with an interim structure, with a number 
of successes. In the budget for 2013/14 investment that had been cut 
was put back into the service and a process started to replace the 
interims with a permanent team. The new Divisional Director 
Commercial, Contracts and Procurement commenced employment with 
Harrow on 2 September.  This appointment represented the initial step 
for the transformation of the procurement function into the new 
Commercial, Contracts and Procurement Division (CCP). 

 
Position Statement and Proposals on Way Forward 

 
Staffing 

 
2. The Division has been running with a number of interim staff for some 

time (of 14 positions 6 until recently were filled by interims, 6 filled with 
permanent staff and 2 posts were vacant) which has resulted in a lack of 
clear lines of responsibility and clarity on roles and functions.   Three 
interim staff contracts have now been ended (although 1 new interim has 
had to be engaged) and work is underway to fill all posts with permanent 
full time staff as quickly as possible.  One Commercial Business Partner 
(Nimesh Mehta) has already commenced work with Harrow, one (Craig 
Brewin) is due to start on 1 November and the third (Hilary Gillies) in 
January 2014. The aim is to have the new structure fully up and running 
with permanent staff by early in the New Year.   A small amendment has 
been made to the structure agreed by CSB previously to ensure that 
responsibility and oversight of governance, systems, savings tracking 
and contract management is given a clear focus (see staffing structure 
attached – Appendix A). Staff currently filling positions have now been 
assigned to support Directorates and other key roles so that both 
individuals and Directorates have clarity as to who is supporting each of 
the business areas.  There will be some period of transition whilst staff 
complete projects already underway and until all posts are filled.  

 
Savings  
 

3. Work is underway to confirm both with Directorates and Finance the 
current position on achievement of the £500K procurement savings 
target to ensure there is a common agreement as to what has been 
delivered and what remains to be delivered i.e. that budgets have been 
reduced as a result of procurement activity.   

 
4. For future financial years discussions need to be held across the 

organisation to determine what aggressive but realistic savings targets 
can be set and how savings targets relate to the options for the 
procurement function that need to be set out for Project Minerva.    A key 
and important feature of this work will be to ensure there is a high degree 
of granularity as to who is responsible for the delivery of identified 

10



 

savings and that these are tracked by CCP to demonstrate that the 
Division is providing value to the organisation.  

 
5. A related issue will be to initiate work to determine the extent to which 

the Council may be able to generate income by exploiting its assets, 
selling services or sharing services and CCP will support Directorates to 
determine the opportunities and deliver these as appropriate.  Work is 
already underway to deliver a wireless concession contract to exploit 
street lighting and other assets.  

 
Systems, tools and processes 

 
6. A review of systems, tools and processes is underway to ensure that 

these are fit for purpose and do not impose unnecessary bureaucracy on 
the organisation.  Primarily work will focus on a rewrite and update of 
Contract Procurement Rules (CPRs) with the aim of completing this work 
and obtaining approval before end March 2014. Some key components 
of this work will be as follows: 
 
Waivers: these are currently required for any proposal that will breach 
CPRs above £1K.  As part of the review of CPRs it is proposed that this 
limit will be raised to £10K (a sum that will link to the potential 
implementation of the Lord Young report on advertising tender 
requirements to promote expenditure with  SMEs).    This will negate the 
need for around 78% of the waivers currently required.  Until CPRs are 
rewritten and the changes approved, the £1K requirement will be raised 
with immediate effect to £5K, an amendment that can be made without 
requiring a change to CPRs and which will negate the need for around 
60% of the waivers currently required and thereby assist to remove 
unnecessary bureaucracy in the Council.  
 
Strategic Procurement Board (SPB) and Directorate Contract Boards 
(DCB):  There is a need to ensure that the business of these Boards is 
appropriate and adds value to the work of the organisation by providing a 
focus on areas such as performance against key contracts, savings 
tracking, contracts forward plans, etc.  Proposals are being worked up for 
a 2 stage Tollgate system (Tollgates will be completed by CCP staff in 
collaboration with Directorate staff) for review by SPB or DCBs as 
appropriate according to the value or strategic importance of the 
procurement to the organisation.  The Stage 1 Tollgate will be for pre-
procurement stage to set out the proposed procurement strategy.  This 
will provide good governance, scrutiny and challenge and confirm that all 
parties are content that the proposed strategy will meet the Council’s 
objectives.   The Stage 2 Tollgate will, effectively, be the procurement 
evaluation report setting out whether the completed procurements meet 
the intended benefits.   

 
Contracts Register – a good contracts register exists but this needs to be 
used more effectively as a management tool to provide adequate 
preparation time for contracts to be renewed and ensure early 
engagement with Directorates to agree strategy, approach and 
opportunities.  This is being rectified to ensure early and constructive 
dialogue with Directorates on key procurements that need to take place.  

11



 

 
 
 
Category Management – a category management approach to Harrow’s 
third party spend is being introduced.  Work on implementation of 
category management will accelerate as the Commercial Business 
Partners take up post and the aim is to have category plans in place for 
the key areas of spend before the end of the current financial year. 

 
Contract Management 

 
7. Opportunities exist to improve contract management arrangements to 

ensure that the Council realises the benefits foreseen when 
procurements were put in place.  A number of actions are proposed to 
achieve this improvement. To assist with e-tendering requirements, the 
Council has acquired software from Due North; this application also 
contains a contract management application which is being reviewed to 
see whether this could be used to assist to improve contract 
management arrangements and if so how best this could be rolled out 
and used across the Council.  Proposals are also being developed to 
ensure that for larger contracts (value to be determined) or those of 
strategic importance, a regime of regular meetings with the suppliers is 
put in place if they do not exist already and that CCP staff attend and 
fully support those meetings.   Future contracts will also be fully reviewed 
to ensure they contain appropriate contract management clauses 
including key performance indicators, etc.  Guidance is being written that 
will be placed on the intranet to provide staff with support on contractual 
procedures, issues, etc.   In addition, in November the Audit Commission 
will be publishing the outcome of a study it has been undertaking on 
Contract Management – this is to highlight the importance of this area to 
councils and to share some of the learning developed by councils to 
date.   The outcomes of the study will be taken into account when 
developing Harrow’s contract management procedures.  

 
Key projects 

 
8. The Division is fully supporting the Council’s key projects, notably the 

Schools Expansion Programme and Project Minerva and will work with 
Directorates, etc to achieve successful delivery of these. 

 
Commercial Strategy 

 
9. A Commercial Strategy will be developed to provide a document for 

Members and Directorates that sets out the direction of travel for the 
CCP Division.   It is proposed that the Strategy will have three key 
themes, these being Savings, Efficiencies and Income Generation, 
Sustainability and Modernising Procurement.   Discussions will be held 
with Members and Directorates to determine the timing for bringing 
forward this Strategy.   

 
 
 
 

12



 

 
 
Conclusions 

 
The Council has acknowledged the need to make improvements to its 
Procurement function and is investing to achieve this.  This report has 
set out the steps being undertaken to ensure that this investment 
delivers tangible results.  
 

 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There is a savings target of £500K to be achieved from procurement activity.  
Work needs to be directed to ensure this target is completed by the end of the 
current financial year.  
 

Performance Issues 
 
N/A 
 

Environmental Impact 
 

N/A 
 

Risk Management Implications 
    

Risk included on Directorate risk register?  No 
  
Separate risk register in place?  No 
  

Corporate Priorities 
 
N/A 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:   Simon George x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date:      24 October 2013 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name:   Hugh Peart  x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date:     22 October 2013 

   
 

 
 

13



 

 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 

Contact:  Report Author:  Terry Brewer, Divisional Director, Commercial, 

Contracts and Procurement, 020 8416 8442 
 
 

Background Papers:   
 
Lord Young Report:  -  Growing your business: a report on growing micro 
businesses published May 2013 by Department for Business, Innovation and 
Skills 

14



2
9
/1

0
/1

3

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l,
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
ts

 &
 P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 
D

ir
e
c
to

r

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l,
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r

C
h
il
d
re

n
 &

 F
a
m

ili
e
s

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 H

W
B

V
A

C
A

N
T

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

V
A

C
A

N
T

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

&
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
il
d
re

n
 &

 F
a
m

ili
e
s

V
A

C
A

N
T

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t

V
A

C
A

N
T

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

p
e
c
ia

lis
t

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 H

W
B

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
A

n
a
ly

s
t

V
A

C
A

N
T

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

PERFORMANCE AND 

FINANCE SCRUTINY  

SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

6 November 2013  

Subject: 

 

Business Continuity Update   

Responsible Officer: 

 

Tom Whiting, Corporate Director of Resources   
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Jerry Miles, Policy Lead Member 

& Councillor Amir Moshenson, Performance Lead  

Member 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

None 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

 
 
This report sets out an update on Business Continuity activity as requested by 
the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  Business Continuity is a function of the 
Civil Contingencies Team with a regular reporting line to the GARM 
Committee.   

 
Recommendations: To note the report  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 17 to 24

17



Section 2 – Report 
 
 
Introduction  
 
The Civil Contingencies Team, also known colloquially as the “Emergency 
Planning & Business Continuity Team”, is one of the distinct teams that sit 
within the Finance & Assurance Division of the council.   
 
The Civil Contingencies Team is a small, but effective unit of three staff.  The 
team provide a corporate service delivering Emergency Planning, Business 
Continuity, and Civil Protection, as defined by the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004; and is the Counter Terror link with the Police Service and HM 
Government.   
 
Business Continuity is a management process to assist an organisation cope 
with an incident such as loss of staff or facilities, e.g. pandemic influenza, fire 
or flood.  It is linked to, but distinct and separate from IT Disaster Recovery, 
which is the restoration of IT by the IT Service.  A separate report on IT DR is 
being made by the IT Service to the P & F Committee.   
 
This report will provide an activity update on Business Continuity, as 
requested by the O & S Committee, and regularly discussed at the GARM 
Committee, the most recent being on 23rd January 2013, minute 218, and at 
the O & S Committee on 23rd July 2013.   
 
 
Business Continuity   
 
Background and process  
 
The council’s Business Continuity plans and ethos are firmly embedded in the 
council.  In order to explain the current issues, risks, and deliverability, it is 
useful to explain the background and process that led us here.   
 
The council’s approach to Business Continuity was based on the British 
Standard BS25999 ‘bottom – up’ process.  The ‘bottom – up’ process began 
in 2006, with Business Continuity workshops being delivered to service 
managers (and similar grades) to identify and classify the council’s essential 
and critical services.  Over 130 key service areas were identified.   
 
During 2007, Business Continuity training sessions were held with divisional 
directors (and similar grades) to develop Business Continuity plans for the key 
service areas within their divisions.  From these Business Continuity plans, 
key infrastructure and IT requirements were identified.   
 
In 2008, table top exercises were held to simulate a major incident occurring, 
such as fire, flood or explosion; and to practice the response of individual 
departments, to see if their Business Continuity plans were viable, and to test 
the corporate response to infrastructure and IT demands.  The key learning 
point identified was the dependency on IT, and in particular the 34 key IT 
applications, out of the council’s 200 plus legacy IT applications.   

18



 
During 2009, the 34 key IT applications that had been identified were taken 
into account as part of the IT Disaster Recovery project, and the wider ‘LBH 
Anywhere’ proposal.  This was going to provide a credible overall Business 
Continuity response to a major incident occurring.   
 
The council now has Business Continuity plans for all its key 37 departments.  
These were reviewed, refined and tested at director level.  The departmental 
Business Continuity plans now feed into a corporate Business Continuity plan, 
an overarching plan for the whole council.  The end had been reached to the 
‘bottom – up’ process.   
 
As part of the corporate Business Continuity plan, arrangements were made 
for key staff to be deployed to a remote location, in the event of a major 
incident occurring at the civic centre complex.  These key staff were identified 
through a series of table top exercises: 280 key staff were identified in total, 
with 150 being allocated seats at the remote site known as ‘relocators’, and 
130 being expected to work from home or another location being known as 
‘isolators’.  This plan was physically tested during a live exercise in 2010, with 
key managers driving to the remote site and setting up as if dealing with a real 
incident.   
 
During 2011, the departmental BC plans were reviewed and updated by 
directors and their service managers.  The council then went through a 
restructuring period for two years with major changes to directorate and 
divisional management.  The review of departmental BC plans during 2012 
was limited to key contact details.  As part of the Olympic preparation, the 
council’s corporate BC plan and key departmental BC plans were tested 
during Exercise Torch Relay, a London-wide exercise developed by the Local 
Government Association, London Councils, London Resilience and London 
Fire Brigade.    
 
During 2013, we have begun a full review and update of all the departmental 
BC plans and the corporate BC plan, to bring them up to date with the 
council’s new structure and the new international standard ISO22301.  This is 
an important piece of work that has been delayed due to the council’s 
restructure and a post being vacant.    
 
 
Risks and weaknesses   
 
One of the key dependencies of the overarching business continuity plan is 
the provision of IT Disaster Recovery (DR) by the IT Service.  The key IT 
systems have been identified through BC workstreams which commenced in 
2009. 
 
There are some IT arrangements in place to meet this requirement (including 
an annual IT DR test) and some improvements are being developed for 
recovery capabilities as part of the new Capita IT contract.  This subject 
matter is covered in a separate report by the IT Service to the P & F 
Committee.  A brief summary from the IT Service has been provided below.   
 
The original intention had been to locate a primary data centre in Capita’s 

19



West Malling site with a secondary data centre in Laindon, which would place 
all the risk and responsibility for IT DR with Capita, but at a cost.  However, 
the continuing financial situation and budget constraints had led to a proposal 
to retain the primary data centre in Harrow with the secondary data centre in 
West Malling, which would reduce costs but also return an element of risk (as 
landlord and ‘host’ of the centre) to the Council.   
 
The IT Service has negotiated a remote access arrangement which would 
allow critical staff to work anywhere and would lessen the need for the 
contracted remote facility.  There is an increased risk of an IT DR situation 
arising because the data centre here is not built to the same standards as a 
commercial Tier 1 data centre.  However, the wider business continuity plans 
acknowledge this with the use of paper based systems, and the risk is no 
greater than it has been historically over a number of years. 
 
 
Deliverability of the plans   
 
The council’s corporate Business Continuity plan and 37 departmental 
Business Continuity plans are tested and reviewed on an annual basis.  The 
plans are workable and are amended to reflect any staff or structural changes.   
 
The departmental BC plans are tested and reviewed each year at the annual 
Gold Training for corporate directors and divisional directors, usually in 
February.  Any amendments or changes to improve the plans are made after 
the test exercise to make sure that the plans are workable and robust.   
 
 
HR issues   
 
The council’s 37 departmental Business Continuity plans take into account 
three generic issues to plan for: non-availability of ICT, denial of access to the 
building, and reduced staff attendance.   
 
Reduced staff attendance is the main HR issue that Business Continuity 
planning takes into account.  This planning takes place because lower staff 
attendance could happen for a number of reasons, e.g. severe weather, travel 
disruption or influenza pandemic.  During the recent influenza pandemic 
during 2009, extensive planning was conducted with managers and HR to 
ensure Business Continuity plans were in place to deal with staff absence 
rates of 25% and 40%.   
 
 
Communications issues   
 
The main communications issue during a Business Continuity incident is the 
ability to communicate with all staff in a timely and effective manner.  During a 
major incident we may not have access to the building or be able to use ICT, 
so Business Continuity plans have been developed and tested to ensure that 
key messages can be given to staff.   
 
Each manager of a service has as part of their Business Continuity 
arrangements, a staff contact list, including personal and home telephone 

20



numbers.  These arrangements were made in consultation with HR and the 
trade unions, to ensure that these contact details were only used in an 
emergency or during the annual test.   
 
We test these communications arrangements each year as part of the 
Business Continuity Phone Cascade Test, usually in November.  The test is 
carried out of hours on a non-specified date.  We initiate the test by contacting 
Corporate Directors, who in turn call their Divisional Directors, who call their 
Service Managers, who then contact their staff members.   
 
For the past two years we have included the Leader of the Council, Group 
Leaders, and their Deputies, so that elected members are included in the 
process; so make sure Democratic Services have your up to date contact 
details.    
 
 
IT Disaster Recovery   
 
As mentioned above, this is an important area with links to BC, but managed 
by the IT Service.  The work has been done to identify which IT applications 
are critical and the timescale that they are required to be reinstated.  The 
decision on how to deliver the IT Disaster Recovery arrangements has to be 
based on cost / benefit analysis, within the Capita IT contract.  There is a 
difference between the IT DR requirements and costs of a major bank and 
that of a local authority.  This area is managed by the IT Service and is the 
subject of a separate report by the IT Service to the P & F Committee.   
 
There are priorities and timescales for agreed IT systems.  In addition to the 
IT DR arrangements that the IT Service have in place, the other linked area is 
ensuring the business has manual BC plans in place to operate until IT 
systems are recovered.  This highlights the importance of keeping BC plans 
up to date and holding regular BC testing and reviews with directors, service 
managers and key staff.   
 
 
Industry Standards and Benchmarking   
 
It is worth bearing in mind the cost / benefit spectrum, and the difference in 
dynamic between the private and public sector.  In general, local authorities 
were not as reliant as the private sector on sophisticated IT systems to deliver 
income streams from a cash-flow perspective following a disaster, but 
required data and communications to support vulnerable individuals and 
groups and to meet statutory obligations.   
 
The council’s BC strategy and plans are based on the British Standard 
BS25999, an internationally recognised process.  The BS25999 was recently 
upgraded to an international standard ISO22301.  There have been some 
slight adjustments between the old standard and new standard.  We are 
currently developing our BC plans to follow the new standard where 
practicable.   
 
The council’s Civil Contingencies Team is a member of the Business 
Continuity Institute and keeps up to date with the latest BC good practice and 

21



guidelines.  At a local level we fully participate in the West London Business 
Continuity Group with the sharing of best practice and peer review of our 
arrangements.   
 
Our BC plans and wider Civil Contingencies arrangements are subject to 
regular professional independent review under the auspices of the London 
Resilience Forum and London Fire Brigade.  We received an overall ‘Green’ 
status in the most recent Minimum Standards for London review in 2012.     
 

 
Financial Implications 
None  

 
 

Performance Issues 
None  
 
 

Environmental Impact 
None  
 
 

Risk Management Implications 
None  
 
 

Equalities Implications 
None  
 
 

Corporate Priorities 
 
Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe   
 
The Civil Contingencies Team helps the council keep neighbourhoods and the 
borough as a whole safe, by developing, exercising and reviewing: 
emergency plans, business continuity arrangements, and assisting the 
emergency services in civil protection 
 

22



Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Steve Tingle  x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date: 24th October 2013   

   

    
on behalf of the 

Name: Jessica Farmer  x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 24th October 2013  

   
 

 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 
 
 

Contact:   
Kan Grover  
Service Manager – Civil Contingencies  
(Emergency Planning & Business Continuity)  
020 8420 9319  
kan.grover@harrow.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Background Papers:  
None   

 

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

������������

�

�	��	
������

�����
������
�����

��������
������

����
������

�

�����������������

�

6 November 2013 

��� �!���

�

Corporate Equalities Objectives – 
Annual Progress Report 

��"#��"��$������!�%��

�

Alex Dewsnap 
Divisional Director Strategic 
Commissioning 
 

�!%����&�'��(�

��)��%��%����

�

All 

�*�)#���

�

No 
 

�

��!$�"�%�"��

�

Annual Equalities Progress Report 

 
 

��!�����+�,���))�%&���(���!�))��(�����"�
 
This report provides an update on our progress against the Council’s Equalitiy 
Objectives which were adopted by Cabinet in April 2012. It also updates the 
committee on our progress against the Excellent Level of the Equality 
Framework for Local Government (EFLG). 

 
Recommendations:  
Performance and Finance committee are asked to: 
 
� Note the progress made against our Corporate Equality Objectives and the 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 25 to 102

25



 

Excellent Level of the EFLG; 
� Note the revised performance measures to support the Equality Objectives 

for 2013/14 
� Agree to receive annual reports on our progress against the Corporate 

Equality Objectives in order to quality assure and provide challenge to 
further improve our performance in mainstreaming equalities across the 
organisation. 

 

26



O:\Equalities & Diversity\Public Sector Equality Duty\Work to comply with the PSED\Annual Progress 
Report\Equalities Report.doc 

��!�����-�,���#�%��
 
Introduction 
 
1. Harrow is one of the most ethnically and religiously diverse boroughs in 

London with people of many different backgrounds and life experiences 
living side by side.  It is the richness of this diversity, and the positive 
impact that it has on the borough and the community, that helps make 
Harrow such a great place to live, work and visit.  The borough’s diversity 
is something to value and encourage and this report highlights the 
Council’s commitment to maintaining and building on our strengths by 
ensuring equality and diversity is integral to everything we do. 

 
2. Harrow’s diverse population generates a range of needs and expectations 

all of which the Council has to understand in order to provide appropriate 
services.  As resources become scarcer, it is even more important to 
understand the community, their needs and aspirations and to be able to 
provide the right services at the right time.   

 
Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duty  
 
3. The Equality Act contains a range of rights, powers and obligations to help 

the drive towards equality.  The Act aims to strengthen and simplify the 
equality law that was already in place, such as the Race Relations Act and 
the Disability Discrimination Act. 

 
4. Section 149 of the Act  introduced a new Public Sector Equality Duty 

(PSED) which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, 
to have due regard to the need to:  

 
� Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 

conduct prohibited by the Act; 
� Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not; and 
� Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 

and those who do not.   
 
5. The new PSED replaces the previous three Public Sector Equality Duties 
– for race, disability and gender  - and now covers Age, Disability, Gender 
Reassignment, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race (this includes ethnic or 
national origins, colour or nationality) Religion or Belief (includes lack of 
belief), Sex and Sexual Orientation. 
 
6.  It also applies to Marriage and Civil Partnership but only in respect of the 
requirement to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination. 
 
7. The PSED is supported by specific duties which are intended to help 
public authorities to meet its requirements.  Public authorities covered by the 
specific duties are required to: 
 
� Publish by the 31st January each year information to demonstrate their 

compliance with the general equality duty; and 
 

27



 

� Prepare and publish by 6 April 2012, and at least every four years 
thereafter one or more equality objectives.  

 
Collate and Publish Equalities Information 
 
8. In order to meet the first requirement of the PSED, a number of local 
authorities have published spreadsheets containing equalities data about their 
service users and workforce, whilst others have agreed to continue to publish 
their annual equality in employment report relating to their workforce and 
Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) as required by the previous duties.    
 
9. Although this approach meets the requirements, the Council decided to 
publish its equalities data in a more constructive way. 
 
10. In order to ensure that the data published is easy to understand and to 
ensure transparency with regard to progress in addressing inequality and 
delivering services reflective of the needs of our community, the Council 
prepared and published equalities information/data in the form of a narrative 
document ‘Our Harrow, Our Story’. 
 
10. This is a narrative of the services and projects delivered by the Council 
which not only support the Corporate Priorities but address inequality, 
advances equality of opportunity and fosters good relations.  The document 
includes real life case studies of service users and is supported by a set of 
Appendices which hold the data. 
 
11. In 2012 the Equality and Human Rights Commission undertook a review of 
how public services generally complied with the requirement to publish data 
and singled out Harrow Council as the best practice exemplar for the 
transparency and ease of access to the data that we provided.  This year’s 
compilation is available together with the data it supports at 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/863/public_sect
or_equality_duty 
 
Developing and Publishing Equality Objectives 
 
12. In order to meet the second requirement of the PSED, ‘Equality 
Objectives’ were developed based on the research and consultation 
undertaken and the equalities information/data published.  
 
13. The draft Equality Objectives were the subject of public consultation 
including an online questionnaire for staff and elected members and a 
separate questionnaire for members of the public, service users, voluntary 
and community groups, partners and stakeholders and the questionnaire was 
also sent out to the Residents Panel.  As part of the consultation workshops 
for staff and voluntary and community groups, partners and stakeholders also 
took place. A cross party briefing was also held for elected members.  The 
consultation produced support for the proposed Objectives which were 
adopted by Cabinet in April 2012. 
 
14. The objectives support the Corporate Plan and progress towards them is 
measured by a number of indicators identified by Directorates through their 
Service Planning process. 

28



 

 
Measuring our Performance against the Corporate Equality Objectives 
 
15. In line with the existing performance process, directorates produce 
quarterly progress reports against their directorate scorecards for the 
Improvement Boards.  These form the basis of annual progress reports. This 
will not only mainstream equalities within existing processes and service plans 
but also adhere to the COUNT (collate once use numerous times) principle. 
 
Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG) 
 
16. The EFLG superseded the Equality Standard for Local Government 
(ESLG) and is a performance and improvement framework to enable local 
authorities to embed and mainstream equalities across the organisation. The 
EFLG has three (developing, achieving and excellent) levels and it builds on 
and develops the work councils have done on the old ESLG.  The Council 
made a commitment of working towards and achieving the ‘Excellent’ level of 
the new Framework. 
 
17. There has since been a review of the EFLG, which was published in 
March 2012 and which has changed the framework substantially from the first 
edition.  As a result of this review, there has been a pan-London round up of 
which Councils are seeking accreditation.  Although a number of authorities 
have adopted the Framework to embed good practice, mainstream equalities 
and maintain the high visibility of equalities within their communities, only a 
couple of authorities have sought accreditation.  
 
18. Accreditation, while potentially recognising achievement against a fixed 
set of outcomes, only provides a snapshot of performance.  It also costs in 
excess of £10,000 in fees and a significant amount in staff time gathering and 
collating information and evidence.  An alternative approach and one favoured 
by a majority of London Boroughs is to adopt the Framework as a tool to 
measure on a continuous basis improvements and progress.  This approach 
maintains momentum in mainstreaming equalities policy and practice without 
the risk of focussing attention on an assessment to the detriment of sustained 
progress. 
 
19. In December 2012, the Council decided no longer to seek to obtain 
‘accreditation’ against the Excellent level of the Framework. The Council’s 
adoption of stretching Equality Objectives, the transparency with which data 
has been and will continue to be published and work to bring equalities 
performance within the remit of Improvement Boards all demonstrates a 
commitment to the wider equalities agenda which would not be diminished by 
opting for an internal and ongoing challenge rather than a snapshot 
assessment. It was also agreed that the Performance and Finance Sub-
Committee would be the vehicle for overseeing our progress. 
 
Our Progress and Way Forward 
 
20. The attached report (Appendix 1) highlights the progress made in the last 
year (2012/13) against our Equality Objectives as well as the ‘Excellent’ level 
of the EFLG.  
 

29



 

21. The report also recommends a number of actions which can be taken 
forward to continue our progress towards the ‘Excellent’ level of the 
Framework.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
5. All costs are contained within existing budgets. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
6. Included in the body of the report 
 
Environmental Impact 

 
7. There are no direct environmental impacts of this decision. 
 
Risk Management Implications 

 
8. There are no direct risk management implications of this decision. 

 
Equalities implications 
 
9. The ‘Equality Objectives’ will address inequality, advance equality of 

opportunity and foster good relations and help the Council to comply with 
the statutory requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty introduced 
by the Equality Act 2010.  

 
Corporate Priorities 

 
10. The ‘Equality Objectives’ support all the Council’s Corporate Priorities. 
 

��!�����.����������%&�����!�%��$��%��!��
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Steve Tingle. �  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 21.10.13 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the* 

Name: Jessica Farmer �  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 24.10.13 

   
 

 

��!�����/��������!�������$"���(���!0�%���(�

��#�%"�
 
 

Contact:  Mohammed Ilyas, Policy officer, Equality and Diversity Ext.2322 

30



 

 
 

Background Papers:   
 
‘Our Harrow, Our Story’ 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200041/equality_and_diversity/863/public_sector_equ
ality_duty  
 
 

31



32

This page is intentionally left blank



 
1
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 t
o
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

 o
u

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

  
   

33



 
2
 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 a
n

d
 r

e
lig

io
u
s
ly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

in
 L

o
n

d
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
m

a
n

y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 

e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
s
 l
iv

in
g
 s

id
e

 b
y 

s
id

e
. 

 I
t 

is
 t
h
e
 r

ic
h
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
, 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

th
a
t 

it
 h

a
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y,

 
th

a
t 

w
e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 h

e
lp

s
 m

a
k
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 s
u
c
h
 a

 g
re

a
t 
p
la

c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o
rk

 
a
n
d
 v

is
it
. 

 W
e
 k

n
o
w

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

is
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 t
o
 v

a
lu

e
 

a
n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 E
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
f 

O
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

P
o
lic

y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 o

u
r 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

s
 b

y
 e

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y 

a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 i
s
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
to

 e
v
e
ry

th
in

g
 w

e
 d

o
. 

 In
 s

e
rv

in
g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

fo
r 

it
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

ir
re

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
a
g
e
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
, 

g
e

n
d
e

r 
re

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t,
 m

a
rr

ia
g
e
 a

n
d
 

c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
p
re

g
n

a
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
, 

ra
c
e
, 

re
lig

io
n
 o

r 
b
e

lie
f,

 s
e
x
 

a
n
d
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
o
ri

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 r

e
c
o

g
n
is

e
 t
h
a
t 
in

 o
u
r 

s
o
c
ie

ty
, 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
la

w
fu

lly
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
 a

c
k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
 

o
u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 u
n
la

w
fu

l 
d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y 

a
n
d
 g

o
o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 r

ic
h
 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

's
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 O
u
r 

C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
d

e
s
c
ri
b
in

g
 a

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
 t
h

a
t 
is

 b
u
ilt

 o
n
 

re
c
o
g

n
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
e
v
e
ry

 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y,

 p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

a
n
d
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
, 

fa
ir
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
. 
 A

s
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

le
a
d

e
r,

 w
e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 
s
e
c
to

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 w
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 A
s
 a

n
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r,

 w
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
in

g
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

w
e
 s

e
rv

e
. 

 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
w

e
 w

ill
 a

im
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

n
 o

u
r 

re
c
o

rd
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
lo

re
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

jo
in

in
g
 u

s
. 

 
 A

s
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 w
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

o
p

e
n
, 

fa
ir
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 t

a
k
in

g
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

o
u
r 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

Im
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(E
q
IA

) 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

e
n

g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 l
is

te
n
in

g
 t

o
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 

 A
s
 a

 p
ro

c
u
re

r 
o
f 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 f

a
ir
 a

n
d
 e

q
u
it
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n
g
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

n
 o

u
r 

b
e

h
a
lf
 s

h
a

re
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 
e
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
. 
 

 

T
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
) 

 T
h
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2
0

1
0
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
) 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
s
 p

u
b
lic

 a
u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
, 

in
 t

h
e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
to

 h
a
v
e
 d

u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
: 
 

 �
 

E
lim

in
a
te

 u
n

la
w

fu
l 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

h
a

ra
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 v

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
n
d

u
c
t 

p
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 A

c
t;

 
�
 

A
d
v
a

n
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t;

 a
n
d
 

�
 

F
o
s
te

r 
g
o
o

d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 t
h

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

  
 

 T
h
e
 P

S
E

D
 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 d
u
ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
p
u

b
lic

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
it
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 P
S

E
D

 r
e

p
la

c
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t

h
re

e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

D
u
ti
e
s
 –

 f
o
r 

ra
c
e
, 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 g

e
n

d
e
r 

a
n

d
 n

o
w

 c
o
v
e
rs

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
: 

 

34



 
3
 

�
 

A
g
e
 

�
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

�
 

G
e
n

d
e

r 
R

e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 

�
 

P
re

g
n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 M

a
te

rn
it
y 

�
 

R
a
c
e
 –

 t
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 e

th
n
ic

 o
r 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
o
ri

g
in

s
, 
c
o
lo

u
r 

o
r 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
lit

y
 

�
 

R
e
lig

io
n
 o

r 
B

e
lie

f 
–
 t
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
lie

f 
�
 

S
e
x
 

�
 

S
e
x
u
a
l 
O

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 It
 a

ls
o
 a

p
p
lie

s
 t

o
 M

a
rr

ia
g

e
 a

n
d
 C

iv
il 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
u
t 

o
n

ly
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 h
a
v
e
 d

u
e
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

lim
in

a
te

 
d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
. 

 P
u
b
lic

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

o
v
e

re
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 d
u
ti
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
: 

 
�
 

P
u
b
lis

h
 b

y
 t

h
e
 3

1
s
t  J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1
2
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
ir

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
e
q
u

a
lit

y
 d

u
ty

; 
a
n
d
 

�
 

P
re

p
a
re

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
 b

y
 6

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1

2
, 
a
n

d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

e
v
e
ry

 f
o
u
r 

y
e

a
rs

 
th

e
re

a
ft

e
r 

o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 e
q

u
a
lit

y 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 
 

 O
u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

 O
u
r 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 4

th
 

A
p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2
. 

T
h
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 o

u
r 

S
in

g
le

 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

S
E

S
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
/d

a
ta

 i
n
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

‘O
u
r 

H
a

rr
o

w
, 

O
u
r 

S
to

ry
’ 
p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0
1

2
. 

 
 T

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 i
n
 d

e
p
th

 c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 a

s
s
is

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 a

im
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
c
to

r 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 D

u
ty

 
(P

S
E

D
).

 T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
m

 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
ir

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

 O
u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 

 �
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
re

s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 

a
n

d
 a

s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
  

�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 o

u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

  
�
 

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
  

�
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

im
e
s
 o

f 
e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 

h
a

rd
s
h
ip

  
�
 

P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e

o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
u
s
e
  

�
 

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

b
u

d
g

e
t 
c
u
ts

 o
n
 e

q
u
a

lit
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

�
 

C
e
le

b
ra

te
 t
h
e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
s
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

h
e
s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

g
e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

 
�
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a
t 

fe
e
ls

 v
a
lu

e
d
, 
re

s
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 d

iv
e

rs
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 w

e
 s

e
rv

e
  

 O
u
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 o

u
r 

fi
rs

t 
a
n
n
u

a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 h

o
w

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

e
d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

u
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
) 

it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a
s
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e

d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
 n

e
e

d
, 
e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

it
h
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  In
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

, 
a
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
id

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
) 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 ‘
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t’
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

(E
F

L
G

) 
w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

u
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 c

a
n
 m

a
k
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

35



 
4
 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 b

y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
in

g
 a

 n
u

m
b
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 t
a
k
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 ‘
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t’
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 E

F
L
G

. 
 D

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 
w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

a
p
a

b
le

 o
f 

re
s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

n
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
p
ir

a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
u
r 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

  
 K

e
y 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

: 
�
 

1
0
0
%

 o
f 

e
lig

ib
le

 c
a
re

rs
 w

e
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 a

 P
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
t 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 (

7
8
%

) 
o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

q
u
e
s
t 

o
n
g
o

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
a

b
le

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
  

�
 

D
e
liv

e
re

d
 2

4
8
 (

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
2

0
0
) 

 l
e
tt

in
g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

H
e
lp

2
le

t 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

�
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
%

 w
h
e
e
lc

h
a

ir
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 h
o
m

e
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 

 C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 
M

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
T

h
e
 M

y
H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c
c
o
u

n
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
a

b
le

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 h
o

s
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
lin

e
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

h
o

ic
e
 t

o
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 o
n
 h

o
w

 
th

e
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
W

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

w
a

y
 t

o
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 

b
a
n
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t,

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
e

n
a
b
le

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 w

a
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 a

b
le

 b
e
fo

re
. 
It

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 u

p
-t

o
-d

a
te

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 y
o
u
 h

o
ld

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
, 

re
n
ts

, 
la

n
d

lo
rd

s
, 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 
In

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 y

o
u
r 

la
te

s
t 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
, 

w
e
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

ll 
th

e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
n
t 

y
o
u
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 y

o
u
r 

a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 u

p
-t

o
 d

a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

in
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
, 
lo

c
a
l 
p
la

n
n

in
g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l,
 l
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

, 
u

p
d

a
ti
n
g
 y

o
u

r 
e
le

c
to

ra
l 
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 d

e
ta

ils
 a

n
d
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

. 
T

h
e
 f

in
a

l 
a
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
is

 t
o
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
e

n
d
 o

u
t 

te
x
t 
a
n

d
 e

m
a
il 

a
le

rt
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
s
u

c
h
 a

s
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n
 b

in
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 

d
a

y
s
. 

 O
v
e
ra

ll,
 t

h
e
 M

y
H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

h
a
s
 e

x
p

a
n
d

e
d

 H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

c
h
a

n
n
e
l 
u
s
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
g
a
g

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

D
a

d
’s

 C
lu

b
 

T
h
e
 D

a
d
’s

 C
lu

b
 a

t 
W

e
a
ld

s
to

n
e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 i
s
 f

o
r 

d
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

u
p
 t

o
 s

e
v
e

n
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e
. 

It
 i
s
 r

u
n
 f

o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 i
n
 t

e
rm

 t
im

e
 b

y 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h
 A

d
u

lt
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n

d
 F

a
m

ily
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
. 

T
h
e
 c

lu
b
 i
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
a
ll 

d
a

d
s
 a

n
d

 m
a
le

 c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

a
d
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 u

n
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
, 

h
a
v
e
 l
o
w

 l
it
e
ra

c
y 

s
k
ill

s
, 
a

n
d
 w

it
h

 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

s
 a

 s
e
c
o
n
d
 l
a

n
g

u
a
g

e
. 
E

a
c
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

rh
ym

e
s
, 

s
to

ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
h
e
m

e
, 

w
it
h
 d

a
d
s
 a

n
d
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r.

 D
a

d
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
re

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
, 
a

d
v
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
tu

rn
in

g
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

s
tu

d
y
. 

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

2
 

d
a

d
s
 a

n
d
 1

7
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
s
s
io

n
. 

 R
e
c
e

n
t 

fe
e
d
b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
o
s
e
 a

tt
e

n
d
in

g
 D

a
d
s
 C

lu
b
: 

 “C
o

m
in

g
 t

o
 D

a
d

’s
 C

lu
b
 m

e
a

n
t 
I 

g
o
t 

h
e
lp

 t
o
 g

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

.”
 

“A
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 D

a
d

’s
 C

lu
b
 h

a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

 b
o

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 m

e
 a

n
d
 m

y
 

c
h
ild

.”
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b
le

 y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

  
 K

e
y 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

: 
�
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 u

p
 s

h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 f

ro
m

 
8
4
 t

o
 1

2
8
  

�
 

R
e
d

u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

 t
o
 4

.9
%

 f
ro

m
 9

.2
%

 

36



 
5
 

�
 

9
8
%

 o
f 

1
6
 –

 1
8
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

(N
E

E
T

).
 T

h
is

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

lo
w

e
s
t 
N

E
E

T
) 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

 

C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
 -

 X
1

6
 W

o
rk

 e
x
p
e

ri
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 j
o
b

 
re

a
d

in
e
s
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

X
1

6
 i
s
 a

 1
0

-w
e
e
k
 p

ilo
t 

w
o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 j
o
b
 r

e
a
d
in

e
s
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

1
6
-2

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

re
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 H
a
rr

o
w

 C
h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 X

1
6
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 c

lim
a
te

 f
o
r 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
s
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
b
a
rr

ie
rs

 s
o
m

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 m

a
y
 f

a
c
e
 i
n
 e

n
te

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
in

g
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

  
 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

s
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

g
a
in

 c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 ‘
w

o
rk

 r
e
a

d
y
’,
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

g
a
in

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

  
 Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

o
r 

w
h

o
m

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
re

s
p

o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
w

e
re

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  
T

e
n
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a
v
e
 j
u
s
t 

u
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 4

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
, 

re
a
d

y 
fo

r 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 n

e
x
t 
s
te

p
s
. 

T
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

c
o
h
o

rt
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
c
ru

it
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 i
n
 e

a
rl

y 
2
0
1

3
. 

 A
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
b
e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 t
o
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
 t

h
e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e
s
 f

a
c
e

d
 b

y
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 e

a
rl

y
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 X
1

6
 i
s
 a

 
re

c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 W

o
rk

 E
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 

(J
C

P
) 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 H
a
rr

o
w

 o
f 

a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 o

f 
h
e
lp

in
g
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
u
c
c
e
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 w

o
rl

d
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
  

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
d
e

p
ri

v
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o

rk
in

g
  

 K
e
y 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

: 
�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y 

to
 

1
9
.3

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 1

8
.4

%
) 

�
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 1

0
5
1
 (

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
0
0
) 

c
a
s
e
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

�
 

In
s
ta

lle
d
 6

 g
re

e
n
 g

ym
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g

e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e

 a
n
d
 f

it
n
e
s
s
 

 

C
a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

G
re

e
n

 G
y
m

s
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 6

 G
re

e
n
 G

ym
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 h

ig
h

lig
h
te

d
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

o
b
e
s
it
y 

a
n
d
 

h
e

a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 A
s
ia

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

g
ym

s
 a

re
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

a
g

e
s
 

a
n

d
 f

it
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
a

n
d
 a

re
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 

re
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
w

o
rk

o
u
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

fr
o
m

 b
e
g
in

n
e
rs

 t
o
 e

x
p

e
rt

s
. 

T
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
g

y
m

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
o

rt
s
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
 d

o
n
’t
 a

p
p

e
a

l 
to

 
e
v
e

ry
o

n
e
, 

s
o
 t

h
e
 G

re
e

n
 G

y
m

 
o
ff

e
rs

 a
 f

ri
e
n
d

ly
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

a
n
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

s
e
tt

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 k

e
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 w

a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e

a
lt
h
 a

m
o

n
g
s
t 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

c
a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r,
 d

ia
b
e
te

s
 o

r 
o
b

e
s
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 (

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

m
o
n

g
s
t 
th

e
 

S
o
u
th

 A
s
ia

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
) 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
o
h

e
s
io

n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 d

if
fe

ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 d

e
s
ir
e
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
ir
 f

it
n
e
s
s
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
lif

e
s
ty

le
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

lif
e
 a

n
d
 l
o
n

g
e
v
it
y 

o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 m

o
s
t 

g
a
in

s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

T
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

n
o
ti
c
e

a
b
le

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

is
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p

le
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

y
m

s
, 

b
e
c
a

u
s
e
 t

h
e
 g

ym
s
 a

re
 

37



 
6
 

e
a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

a
s
u
a
l 
u
s
e

rs
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

u
s
a

g
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

th
e
 d

a
y
 (

a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
o
ti
c
e
a
b
le

 d
ro

p
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
ld

e
r 

w
in

te
r 

d
a
y
s
).

  
 

C
a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

  
T

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
llo

tm
e
n
t 

s
it
e
s
 a

t 
3
3
 l
o

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
o
b

je
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

is
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p
le

 t
o
 c

u
lt
iv

a
te

 
a
llo

tm
e
n
t 

p
lo

ts
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
 T

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 s

e
e
k
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
a
n

d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 o

p
ti
m

is
e
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
llo

tm
e
n
t 

s
it
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p

lo
t 

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 n
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

e
d
s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 p
lo

ts
 t

o
 e

d
u
c
a
te

 c
h
ild

re
n
. 

 A
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
 s

im
p
le

 a
n
d
 m

u
lt
i-

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 

g
re

a
tl
y
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
fo

o
d
, 

s
o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
, 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

w
a
s
te

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 

c
a
rb

o
n
 f

o
o
tp

ri
n
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

d
if
fe

ri
n

g
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
th

e
y
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l’s

 h
e
a
lt
h
. 

 S
u
p

p
o

rt
 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n
 t

im
e

s
 o

f 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

  
 K

e
y 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

: 
�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

le
s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

g
a
in

. 
(B

a
s
e
lin

e
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

1
 7

7
p
e

o
p

le
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
)  

�
 

M
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 %

 d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
in

 j
o

b
s
e

e
k
e
r 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 a

t 
1
.5

%
 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 f

a
v
o
u
r 

�
 

H
a
lt
e

d
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 

6
.9

4
%

 (
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
1
 V

a
c
a

n
t 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
s
 6

.9
7
%

) 
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

S
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

 h
a

rd
 t
im

e
s
 

In
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 N

o
rt

h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 h
a

d
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

e
m

p
ty

 s
h
o
p
s
 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
a

n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 M
e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
ff

e
ri
n
g
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
. 

A
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
, 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
ra

in
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
v
e

rs
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 a
re

a
s
, 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 l
e

d
 t

o
 

n
e

w
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 n

e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 c

o
m

in
g

 t
o
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
s
o
m

e
 n

e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y 

in
 d

e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

re
g
u
la

to
ry

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

In
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
tw

o
 g

u
id

e
s
 w

e
re

 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 n
e

w
 

e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

. 
T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t,

 a
 t
o
o
lk

it
 t

o
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n

 o
u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a

rd
s
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 m

u
s
t 
c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 s
a
ti
s
fy

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
, 

a
 “

H
o

w
 t
o
 G

u
id

e
 t

o
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

fe
a
tu

re
s
 c

a
s
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
H

a
rr

o
w

 e
n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u
rs

 e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 t
h

e
y
 

to
o
k
 e

a
c
h
 s

te
p
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h
e

ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

O
u
r 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

o
 l
is

te
n
 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
re

s
p

o
n

d
, 
a

n
d
 u

s
e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 f

ro
m

 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 n
e

w
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e

u
rs

 t
o
 c

re
a
te

 j
o
b
s
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

.  
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

X
c
it
e

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
X

c
it
e
 i
s
 a

 c
o
u
n
c
il-

ru
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
lp

s
 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 f
in

d
 w

o
rk

. 
It

 h
a
s
 

h
a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 
in

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 
T

h
e
 X

c
it
e
 W

o
rk

 
C

lu
b
 i
s
 o

p
e

n
 t

o
 a

ll 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
e

d
 1

8
 –

 6
5

 w
h
o
 a

re
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h
t 
to

 
w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h

e
 U

K
. 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 h

e
lp

in
g
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 m
o
v
e
 i
n
to

 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b

y
 c

o
a
c
h
in

g
 o

n
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
 t

e
c
h

n
iq

u
e
s
, 

jo
b
 s

e
a
rc

h
e
s
 a

n
d
 

38



 
7
 

m
o
re

. 
T

h
e
 X

c
it
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 g

iv
e
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o

rt
 a

ro
u
n

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t,
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

r 
a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

y.
 

X
c
it
e
 r

u
n
s
 t

h
e
 X

2
1
 G

ra
d
u

a
te

 p
la

n
, 

a
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 
W

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
s
 f

u
n
d
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

th
a
t 
a
im

s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 g
ra

d
u

a
te

s
 a

g
e

d
 2

1
 -

 3
0
 

liv
in

g
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

re
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

J
o
b
 

S
e
e
k
e
rs

 A
llo

w
a

n
c
e
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 f
iv

e
 t

o
 1

0
 w

e
e
k
 w

o
rk

 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

w
it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
. 
It

 
e
x
c
e
e
d

e
d
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

 c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
to

 
p
a
id

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

 X
c
it
e
 a

ls
o
 r

u
n
s
 J

o
b
 F

a
ir
s
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
In

 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

8
7
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 
 

 

P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 h
a

rm
fu

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
c
ri

m
e

, 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
u

s
e
  

 K
e

y 
H

ig
h
lig

h
ts

: 
�
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 c

la
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 

B
M

E
 (

In
c
. 

B
la

c
k
, 

A
s
ia

n
, 

M
ix

e
d
 &

 C
h

in
e
s
e
) 

h
a

s
 f

a
lle

n
 f

ro
m

 6
5
.5

%
 

in
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t

o
 5

7
.7

%
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
.  

�
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
e
a
t 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 s

e
e
n
 b

y 
M

u
lt
i 

A
g
e
n
c
y 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 f

e
ll 

fr
o
m

 3
3
%

 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

to
 1

3
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

 

C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

S
to

p
 

H
a

te
 U

K
 

In
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 P
o
lic

e
 

la
u

n
c
h
e

d
 a

 n
e
w

 2
4
 h

o
u
r 

h
e
lp

lin
e
 f

o
r 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
h
a
te

 
c
ri
m

e
. 

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y 

S
to

p
 H

a
te

 U
K

 i
s
 j
o
in

tl
y 

fu
n
d
e

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 

th
e
 P

o
lic

e
 f

o
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
It

 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

ff
e
r 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
 A

 l
a
u
n
c
h
 e

v
e

n
t 
w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 T
o

w
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
h
a
te

 c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 

 C
a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

N
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o
o

d
 C

h
a

m
p
io

n
s
  

T
h
e
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
, 

a
 j
o
in

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 P

o
lic

e
, 

w
a
s
 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 c
le

a
n
e
r 

a
n

d
 s

a
fe

r 
b
o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

tr
a
in

e
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
h
o
s
e
 r

o
le

 i
s
 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
b
o

u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 d
a
y
 s

tr
e
e
t 

le
v
e
l 
n
u
is

a
n
c
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

ir
 

s
tr

e
e
t,

 w
it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

b
e
 a

 c
o

n
d
u
it
 f

o
r 

m
e
s
s
a

g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir

 a
re

a
s
. 

 T
h

is
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
s
in

g
, 
g

ra
ff

it
i,
 f

ly
-

ti
p
p
in

g
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 a
n

d
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
, 
g
e

n
e
ra

l 
a
n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r,

 a
n

d
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

. 
T

h
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

ls
o
 a

im
s
 t

o
; 
p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
w

it
h
 a

 r
o
le

 a
n
d
 a

 v
o
ic

e
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 s

p
ir
it
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
th

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

8
5

0
 t

ra
in

e
d
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
b
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d
s
 w

it
h
 

m
o
re

 a
w

a
it
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 r
e

g
is

te
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

e
e
k
 a

ft
e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

 K
ri
s
h
n
a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 N
e

ig
h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 

fo
r 

n
e
a
rl

y
 2

 y
e
a

rs
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
 s

tr
a
n

g
e

r 
to

 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
. 
S

h
e
 s

a
y
s
 "

A
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 I

 a
ls

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 M

IN
D

 
in

 H
a
rr

o
w

 a
s
 a

 h
e
lp

lin
e

 a
d
v
is

o
r.

  
 

I 
w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 a

 M
u
s
c
u
la

r 
D

y
s
tr

o
p
h
y
 c

h
a
ri

ty
 a

n
d
 I
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
in

g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 h

a
te

 c
ri

m
e
. 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 a

ll 
th

is
 I

 s
ti
ll 

fi
n
d
 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o
d
 C

h
a

m
p
io

n
 a

s
 i
t's

 v
e
ry

 e
a
s
y
 t

o
 f
it
 t

h
is

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 e

v
e

ry
th

in
g
 e

ls
e

”.
 

   

39



 
8
 

C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

Y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e

 
G

ro
u

p
s
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 p

u
tt
in

g
 a

 s
to

p
 

to
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

t 
a
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

h
o
s
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 &

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 F

o
ru

m
, 

in
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u

n
c
il.

  
 T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
rk

e
d
 W

h
it
e
 R

ib
b
o
n
 D

a
y 

a
n
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
D

a
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 

E
lim

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
W

o
m

e
n
 &

 G
ir
ls

 w
it
h
 a

 f
o
ru

m
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

C
h

a
m

b
e

r.
  

 
 D

u
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
c
e

n
t 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n

n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

th
e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 a

g
e
d
 1

6
 a

n
d
 1

7
, 
th

e
 d

a
y 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 y

o
u
n

g
 v

ic
ti
m

s
. 
  

 It
 b

e
g

a
n
 w

it
h
 a

 m
o
v
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 y
o

u
n
g
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
C

it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

a
n
d
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 

w
it
h
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

to
ry

 o
f 

L
ily

, 
a
 y

o
u

n
g
 v

ic
ti
m

 o
f 

v
io

le
n
c
e
. 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

, 
1
6
-y

e
a

r-
o
ld

 R
o
c
io

 F
e
rn

a
n

d
e

z
, 

s
a
id

: 
“I

t 
d
id

 m
a
k
e
 u

s
 

th
in

k
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
. 

Y
o
u
 d

o
n
’t
 r

e
a
lly

 h
e

a
r 

a
b
o

u
t 
th

is
 k

in
d
 o

f 
s
tu

ff
 

fr
o
m

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
o
 i
t 

d
id

 h
e
lp

 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 

it
 t
o
 u

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll.

” 
 V

is
h
a
l 
P

a
te

l,
 1

7
, 

w
h
o
 p

la
y
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

r 
in

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

s
a
id

: 
“I

t 
d
e
fi
n
it
e
ly

 o
p

e
n
e

d
 m

y
 e

y
e

s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

n
d

 m
a
d
e
 m

e
 t

h
in

k
 a

 l
o
t 

m
o
re

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

b
o
u

t 
h
o

w
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y 
v
io

le
n
c
e
.”

  
T

h
e
 d

a
y
 a

ls
o
 m

a
rk

e
d
 t

h
e
 l
a

u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 Y
o
u
n

g
 

P
e
rs

o
n
s
 S

e
x
u
a
l 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

a
rd

, 
a
 p

o
c
k
e
t-

s
iz

e
 b

o
o
k
le

t 
b
e
in

g
 

g
iv

e
n
 o

u
t 

to
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

ta
y
in

g
 s

a
fe

 
a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
o
 g

e
t 

h
e
lp

 f
o
r 

v
ic

ti
m

s
. 

 

M
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

b
u

d
g
e

t 
c
u

ts
 o

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

 K
e
y 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

: 
 

�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

q
IA

) 
T

o
o
lk

it
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

�
 

D
e
liv

e
re

d
 E

q
IA

 t
ra

in
in

g
/w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
, 
m

a
n
a
g
e

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

�
 

In
c
lu

d
e
d
 e

q
u
a

lit
y 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
 C

a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

M
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
in

g
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

  
In

 2
0
1

2
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
d
o

p
te

d
 a

 m
o
re

 f
le

x
ib

le
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e

d
 

g
re

a
te

r 
o

n
u
s
 o

n
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a

l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
la

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 i
n
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
E

q
IA

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

lig
n

e
d
 t

o
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
t 

o
n
ly

 e
m

b
e

d
 E

q
IA

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

h
a
v
e
 s

im
p
lif

ie
d
 t

h
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
m

, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h

e
 ‘
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t’
 l
e

v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

(E
F

L
G

).
 

 C
a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

E
q
IA

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 G

ro
u
p

 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 E

q
IA

s
, 
w

e
 o

ff
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
p
re

p
a
ri

n
g
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 s
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 

s
ta

n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
. 
T

h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 g

ro
u

p
 

c
o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
a
ir
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u
p
s
, 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
P

o
lic

y 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
, 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a

g
e
r 

fo
r 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 U

n
io

n
s
. 

 

40



 
9
 

C
e

le
b
ra

te
 t

h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 

a
n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o

h
e
s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e

 w
h

e
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 g

e
t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
 

 K
e

y 
H

ig
h
lig

h
ts

: 
 

�
 

A
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
o
h
e
s
io

n
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

H
a

rr
o
w

 
a
n
d
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 (
H

S
P

) 
�
 

7
7
%

 p
e

o
p

le
 b

e
lie

v
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

(I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

T
ra

c
k
e
r)

 
�
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
a
le

n
d

a
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

e
n
 e

v
e
n
ts

  
 

C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

D
ia

m
o

n
d

 
J
u
b

ile
e
 Q

u
e
e

n
’s

 v
is

it
 t

o
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

T
h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
 a

tt
e

n
d
e
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

e
v
e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 K

ri
s
h
n

a
 A

v
a
n
ti
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o
l 

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

 t
o
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 L

o
n
d

o
n
’s

 
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 
T

h
e
 Q

u
e

e
n
 w

a
s
 

a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

u
k
e
 o

f 
E

d
in

b
u
rg

h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 v

is
it
, 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
 e

v
e

n
t 

p
a
id

 t
ri
b

u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

Q
u
e

e
n
’s

 s
ix

 d
e
c
a

d
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 t

h
ro

n
e
 a

n
d
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
d
 b

o
th

 L
o
n

d
o
n
’s

 
tr

a
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 g
ro

w
in

g
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 h

e
r 

re
ig

n
. 

T
h
e
 R

o
y
a

l 
C

o
u

p
le

 
w

e
re

 t
re

a
te

d
 t
o
 d

a
n
c
e
, 

m
u
s
ic

, 
s
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 s
h
o

w
c
a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
 a

g
e
s
, 

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

fa
it
h
s
 a

n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

re
lig

io
u
s
ly

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
. 

 
  

C
a
s
e

 S
tu

d
y
: 

H
a

rr
o

w
’s

 H
e

ro
e
s
 –

 r
e
c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 h

o
w

 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 m
a
k
e

 a
 r

e
a

l 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 H

e
ro

e
s
 2

0
1
2
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 t

h
e
 3

0
th

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 9

7
 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

ix
 c

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

T
ru

s
te

e
/C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r,

 Y
o
u

n
g
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

Y
e
a
r,

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r,

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r,

 H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll 

B
e
ri
n
g
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r 

a
n

d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

V
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r.

 A
 w

in
n

e
r 

fr
o
m

 e
a
c
h
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 w
a
s
 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 b

y
 a

 p
a

n
e
l 
o
f 

ju
d

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

Y
e
a
r 

w
a
s
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

th
e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

 
 J
o
a

n
 P

e
n
ro

s
e
 w

o
n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

V
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r 

2
0
1

2
. 

 J
o

a
n
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 t

ir
e
le

s
s
ly

 c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 

o
f 

th
o
s
e
 s

u
ff

e
ri
n
g
 m

e
n
ta

l 
ill

n
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
3

0
+

 y
e

a
rs

. 
S

h
e
 h

a
s
 

m
a
d
e
 a

n
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

lif
e
 f

o
r 

m
a
n

y 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p
 a

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h

a
t 

fe
e

ls
 v

a
lu

e
d
, 

re
s
p
e

c
te

d
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 w

e
 

s
e
rv

e
  

 K
e
y 

H
ig

h
lig

h
ts

: 
�
 

U
p
d

a
te

d
 S

A
P

 a
n

d
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

ta
ff

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 t
o
 

c
o
lla

te
 a

n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 a

ll 
n
in

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

�
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
ir

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 

d
e
ta

ils
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

�
 

L
a

u
n
c
h

e
d
 t

h
e
 M

a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
’ 
p
ro

je
c
t 

a
im

s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h
 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

A
n
n

u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

 
 

   

41



 
1
0
 

C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

S
ta

ff
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 F
a
ir

 
A

 S
ta

ff
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 F
a
ir
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 
w

a
s
 a

 h
u

g
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 

3
5

0
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 d

ro
p
p
in

g
 i
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

lu
n
c
h
ti
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

2
 t

o
 2

p
m

. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
2
 e

x
h
ib

it
o

rs
, 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l,
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
a

n
g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

ly
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 C

re
d
it
 U

n
io

n
 t

o
 

d
is

c
o

u
n
te

d
 g

ym
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

. 
E

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

e
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 a

s
k
 t

h
e
 

e
x
h
ib

it
o
rs

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

h
o

w
 t
h

e
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
p

e
ra

te
 a

n
d
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
s
 w

e
re

 o
f 

ta
k
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 u
p
. 

 In
it
ia

l 
v
e
rb

a
l 
fe

e
d

b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
h

e
 d

a
y
 s

u
g

g
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 f

o
u

n
d
 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

to
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 u
s
e
fu

l 
a
n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 f

in
d
 o

u
t  

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

y
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 t
h
e

ir
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

w
it
h
 

e
x
h
ib

it
o
rs

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
 

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

ls
o
 t
o

o
k
 a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

re
e
 t

a
s
te

r 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 Y

o
g

a
 

a
n
d
 T

a
i 
C

h
i 
a
n

d
 m

a
n
y
 s

ig
n

e
d
 u

p
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

la
s
s
e
s
. 

 C
a

s
e
 S

tu
d

y
: 

C
R

E
A

T
E

 A
w

a
rd

s
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
s
ts

 a
n
 

a
n
n
u

a
l 
C

R
E

A
T

E
 A

w
a
rd

s
 

c
e
re

m
o
n

y
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 

s
ta

ff
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

w
o
rk

 a
n

d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 
2
0
1
1
, 

o
v
e

r 
4

0
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
, 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 t
e

a
m

s
 i
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 

v
a
lu

e
s
. 

 

A
ll 

s
h
o
rt

-l
is

te
d
 n

o
m

in
e

e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 c
e

rt
if
ic

a
te

, 
to

 m
a
rk

 t
h
e
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
; 

w
it
h
 e

a
c
h
 r

u
n
n

e
r-

u
p
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 £

1
0
0
 c

a
s
h
 a

n
d
 w

in
n
e

rs
, 
a
 t

ro
p

h
y
 a

n
d
 

£
2

5
0
. 

In
 t

h
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 c
a
te

g
o
ry

, 
w

in
n

e
rs

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 £

5
0

0
, 

to
 

s
p
e

n
d
 o

n
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 a

c
ti
v
it
y 

o
f 

th
e
ir

 c
h

o
ic

e
. 

 A
ft

e
r 

th
e
 c

e
re

m
o
n

y
, 

th
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

M
ic

h
a

e
l 
L

o
c
k
w

o
o
d
 s

a
id

: 

“T
h

e
 C

R
E

A
T

E
 A

w
a

rd
s
 a

re
 a

 g
re

a
t 
w

a
y
 t
o
 t

h
a

n
k
 o

u
r 

s
ta

ff
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

fa
n
ta

s
ti
c
 j
o

b
 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 t
o
u

g
h
 t

im
e
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 m
a
n
y
 

e
x
a

m
p
le

s
 o

f 
h
o

w
 s

ta
ff

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
 g

o
 t
h
e
 e

x
tr

a
 m

ile
 a

n
d
 

m
a
k
e
 a

 r
e
a

l 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
. 

 
O

u
r 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

T
h
e
 E

F
L
G

 s
u
p

e
rs

e
d
e
d

 t
h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

(E
S

L
G

) 
a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
lo

c
a

l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

m
b
e

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

 I
t 

b
u
ild

s
 o

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
s
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 c
o
u

n
c
ils

 h
a
v
e
 d

o
n

e
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 o

ld
 E

S
L
G

 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

t 
le

v
e

l 
4
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ld
 E

S
L
G

. 
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ld
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 t

ra
n
s
la

te
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 ‘
A

c
h
ie

v
in

g
’ 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
 I

n
 

a
d

o
p
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 S

E
S

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a
d
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 ‘
E

x
c
e

lle
n
t’
 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 F
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

.  
 In

 J
u
ly

 2
0

1
3
, 

a
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
id

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
) 

w
a
s
 

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e

 ‘
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t’
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

u
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 t
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

‘E
x
c
e
lle

n
t’
 L

e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 E

F
L
G

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 t

o
 h

o
w

 w
e
 c

a
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
s
e
. 
 

 A
lt
h
o

u
g
h
, 

a
s
 a

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

E
F

L
G

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h

e
 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

te
m

p
la

te
 i
n
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 2
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

e
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

 

42



 
1
1
 

W
a
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

In
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

u
ild

 o
n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

in
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e
ts

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

S
o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
, 

s
lig

h
tl
y 

a
m

e
n
d

e
d
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 o
n
e
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
c
e
. 

T
h

e
 

re
v
is

e
d
 P

Is
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 

a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 A

p
p
e

n
d
ix

 3
. 

 
  

43



 
1
2
 

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

 K
e
y
 -

 R
A

G
 –

 R
e
d
 A

m
b
e
r 

G
re

e
n
  

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 1

 -
 D

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

a
p

a
b
le

 o
f 

re
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 

to
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

n
e
w

 e
lig

ib
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 a

 
p
e

rs
o
n
a

l 
b
u
d

g
e
t 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

n
/a

 
9
1
.8

%
 

A
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

b
ly

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 w

e
re

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
 a

 P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
B

u
d
g

e
t 
(P

B
).

 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
‘E

lig
ib

le
 c

lie
n
ts

' w
a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 b
e
fo

re
 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a

r 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e
 u

s
in

g
 c

e
rt

a
in

 t
y
p

e
s
 o

f 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 p
e
rs

o
n

a
l 
b

u
d
g

e
t.
 

A
 

1
0

0
%

 e
lig

ib
le

 n
e
w

 c
a
re

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

 c
a

re
rs

 
p
e

rs
o
n
a

l 
b
u
d

g
e
t,

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a

r 
n
/a

 
1
0

0
%

 

D
a
ta

 o
n
 c

a
re

r 
P

B
s
 c

a
n

 n
o

w
 b

e
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

-i
. 

A
ll 

n
e

w
 c

a
re

rs
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a

ry
 t

o
 

M
a
rc

h
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
o
s
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 p
u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b

u
d
g
e
ts

. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

u
s
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
(f

ro
m

 4
5
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
o
 5

5
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3
 –

 A
C

C
U

 s
u
rv

e
y
) 

a
n

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 (

fr
o
m

 6
7
%

 i
n
 

2
0

1
0
/1

1
 t
o
 7

3
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 –

 A
C

C
U

 s
u
rv

e
y
) 

a
n

d
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

n
/a

 
n
/a

 

N
o
te

: 
T

h
e
 A

C
C

U
 s

u
rv

e
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 s

o
 

th
e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 n
o
 l
o

n
g
e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 o

ld
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 
T

h
e
 A

C
C

U
 s

u
rv

e
y 

w
ill

 b
e
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

k
e
y 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y 

w
h

ic
h
 p

o
p
u

la
te

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

o
n
 t
h

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
. 

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 D

H
 c

lie
n
t 

s
u

rv
e
y
 (

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1

3
) 

s
h
o

w
 t

h
a
t:

 

•
 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 d

a
ily

 l
if
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y 
7
%

 f
ro

m
 6

4
%

 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 7

1
%

 i
n
 2

0
1

3
. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 

in
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 c

a
s
h
 o

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u

d
g
e
ts

 (
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
 

P
B

).
 T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 1
6

th
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 b

a
s
e

d
 

n
/a

 

44



 
1
3
 

o
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 d

a
ta

. 

•
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 r
e
la

te
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
L
if
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 a
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 

1
7
.9

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 t
o
 1

8
.3

 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

T
h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 1
3

th
 i
n
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 d

a
ta

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
u
s
e
rs

 w
h

o
 s

a
y
 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
n

d
 r

e
lig

io
u
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t 

to
 a

b
o
v
e
 8

6
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

8
6
%

 
1
0

0
%

 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 s
u

rv
e

y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

A
g
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t:

 

•
 

O
f 

th
e
 n

in
e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

h
a
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 r

e
lig

io
u
s
 o

r 
d
ie

ta
ry

 n
e
e

d
, 

e
ig

h
t 
s
ta

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
ir

 
c
a
re

 p
la

n
. 

In
v
a
ri
a

b
ly

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

h
a
d
 m

e
a
ls

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 b
y
 a

 
re

la
ti
v
e
. 

•
 

O
n
e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
e
n
t 
s
ta

te
d

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

e
re

 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 a

n
d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 
“u

s
u
a
lly

” 
m

e
t 

b
y
 t
h

e
 h

o
m

e
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
u
s
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
8
3
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 -

 A
C

C
U

 
s
u
rv

e
y
 

n
/a

 
n
/a

 

N
o
te

: 
T

h
e
 A

C
C

U
 s

u
rv

e
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 s

o
 

th
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 
w

it
h
 t
h

e
 o

ld
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 
T

h
e
 A

C
C

U
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

ta
ilo

re
d
 t
o
 c

o
v
e

r 
k
e

y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

s
u
rv

e
y 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
p
u

la
te

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

n
/a

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
s
 o

r 
w

it
h
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
  

(t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

7
0
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

) 
 

7
1
.2

%
 

6
8
.7

%
 

N
e

w
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 D
ir
e
c
to

r'
s
 P

a
n

e
l 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

is
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 m

a
n
a

g
e
d
. 

 T
h

e
 f

ig
u
re

 w
a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 a

b
o
u
t 

2
-3

%
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 L

D
 c

lie
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

. 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 a

ll 
lo

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

J
u
ly

. 
 H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 1

6
th

 o
f 

3
3
 L

o
n

d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
, 

w
h
e
n
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

2
0

1
1
/1

2
 d

a
ta

. 

A
 

45



 
1
4
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
o
 d

o
 

n
o
t 
re

c
e

iv
e
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 
re

a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

7
0
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
) 
  

7
4
.6

%
 

7
8
%

 

7
8
%

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

o
 c

o
n

ta
c
te

d
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir

e
 a

n
y
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
ill

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t,

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 b

e
fr

ie
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 s

e
c
o
n
d

a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
iv

in
g
 

in
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
tl
y
 w

it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h
o

u
t 
s
u

p
p
o
rt

 (
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

8
8
%

 
b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
) 
  

7
4
.8

%
 

7
9
.4

%
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 m

o
v
e
d
 u

s
 

u
p
 f

ro
m

 2
1
s
t 
in

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 t
o
 1

5
th

, 
h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

R
 

M
a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

e
q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

(b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 s
c
o

re
 o

f 
0
.9

 a
n
d
 1

.1
 -

 w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 
in

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 w

h
it
e
 

a
n

d
 n

o
n
-w

h
it
e
 c

lie
n
ts

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
).

 

1
.0

2
 

1
.0

4
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

n
 t
h

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
is

 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 e

q
u
it
a
b
le

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e
 w

h
it
e
 /

 n
o
n
-w

h
it
e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

. 
A

 s
c
o
re

 
o
f 

1
.0

0
 w

o
u
ld

 s
h

o
w

 n
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 g

iv
e

n
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 2

0
0

 l
e
tt
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 H

e
lp

2
le

t 
b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

1
6

3
 

2
4

8
 

W
e
 a

re
 l
e

a
d
in

g
 o

th
e
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

H
e
lp

2
L
e
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
c
o

g
n
is

e
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

. 
W

e
 a

re
 o

ft
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

o
 s

p
e
a
k
 a

t 
c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 o

n
 

g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 o

n
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o

n
 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

1
0
%

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 h
o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 

6
%

 
1
0
%

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 P

la
n
, 
s
o
 e

a
c
h
 

b
o

ro
u
g

h
 i
n
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
  

G
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 2

 -
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
, 

w
h
o
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 1

0
 %

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

1
4

9
 

4
5

1
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
s
 t
h

e
 e

a
rl

y 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 u
n
iq

u
e
 t

o
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
c
o
n
s
is

ti
n

g
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

te
a
m

s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 a

 T
e
a
m

 A
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e
 

F
a
m

ily
 A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

m
o
v
e
d
 t

o
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
a
s
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0

1
2
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 a

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n

g
 f

a
c
to

r 
to

 t
h
e
 l
o

w
 

G
 

46



 
1
5
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
2

 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 u

p
 s

h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 h

a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 5

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

8
4
 

1
2

8
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 u

p
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r.
 

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 

d
a
te

. 
 S

h
o
rt

 B
re

a
k
s
 w

e
re

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 w

h
e

n
 t
h
e
 A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 g

ra
n
t 

w
a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
d
 r

e
tu

rn
s
. 

 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

D
ir

e
c
t 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 c
a

m
e
 i
n
to

 b
e
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

e
 n

o
w

 m
e

a
s
u
re

 
h
o

w
 m

a
n
y
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 d

ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

h
o

w
 i
t 

is
 u

s
e
d
 b

u
t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 d

e
c
id

e
 h

o
w

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
h
o

rt
 b

re
a
k
s
, 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 u

s
e
 i
t 

fo
r 

s
h
o

rt
 b

re
a
k
s
, 

h
o
lid

a
y
 p

la
y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 e

tc
. 

 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

F
o
u

n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
w

e
s
t 

2
0
%

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 R

e
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 y

e
a
r 

in
 

s
c
h
o

o
l,
 n

u
rs

e
ri
e
s
, 

o
th

e
r 

E
a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

 s
e
tt

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
. 

3
0
.9

%
 

(P
ro

v
is

i
o
n
a
l 

2
0

1
1

-
1
2
) 

3
0
.8

%
 

(F
in

a
l 

2
0

1
1

-
1
2
) 

H
a
rr

o
w

’s
 E

Y
F

S
 g

a
p
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
-1

2
 (

3
0
.8

%
) 

is
 s

m
a
lle

r 
th

a
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
g

a
p
 o

f 
3
1
.3

%
. 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 h
a
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d
 t

o
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h

e
 E

Y
F

S
 g

a
p
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

fe
w

 
y
e

a
rs

, 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 g

a
p
 o

f 
3
6
.5

%
. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
N

E
E

T
 t

o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 2

0
%

 f
o
r 

yo
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 o

ff
e
n
d
e

d
 a

n
d
 

to
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 5

0
%

 f
o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 
Y

O
T

 
(3

0
%

) 
 

L
C

 (
) 

Y
O

T
 

(2
6
%

) 
 

L
C

 (
) 

T
h
e
 N

E
E

T
 f

ig
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
th

 o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
g

e
 (

1
0
-1

6
) 

p
a
rt

a
k
in

g
 i
n
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 

2
5

h
rs

 E
T

E
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
a

g
e
 (

1
7
-1

8
) 

p
a

rt
a
k
in

g
 i
n
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a

n
1
6
h

rs
 E

T
E

. 
In

 c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 

th
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
4
%

 N
E

E
T

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o

u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
2
%

 N
E

E
T

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
re

 l
o

w
e
r 

a
t 

2
6
%

. 
 

A
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e

d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

 c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

 
to

 6
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

9
.2

 
4
.9

%
 

M
a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
e
a
k
 o

f 
1
8
.2

%
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 
o
f 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
. 

 C
P

 t
e
a
m

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
a

re
fu

lly
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
in

 r
e
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

. 
L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
6
 –

 1
8
 y

e
a
rs

 
o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
t 

9
7
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

9
7
.5

%
 

9
8
%

 
C

o
n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

lo
w

e
s
t 

N
E

E
T

) 
in

 E
n
g

la
n
d
 

G
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 3

 -
 M

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g

 

47



 
1
6
 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

o
b

e
s
e
 i
n
 y

e
a
rs

 5
 a

n
d
 6

 t
o
 1

1
.5

%
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

ra
te

 o
f 

1
3
.2

%
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

1
7
.6

%
 

2
0
.7

%
 

T
h
e
 %

 o
f 

Y
e
a
r 

6
 o

b
e
s
e

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 y

e
a
r 

6
 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

u
t 
re

m
a
in

s
 i
n
-l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

a
v
e

ra
g
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

 m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

it
’s

 n
e

ig
h
b

o
u
ri

n
g
 

b
o

ro
u
g

h
s
. 

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

IN
G

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

H
a
rr

o
w

  
  
  

  
  
2
0
.7

%
  

B
a
rn

e
t 

  
  
  

  
  
1
8
.7

%
  

E
a
lin

g
  
  

  
  
  

  
2
1
.9

%
  
�

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n
  

  
  

2
0
.7

%
  

B
re

n
t 
  

  
  
  

  
  
2
2
.8

%
  

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
in

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 b

o
th

 y
e

a
rs

 5
 a

n
d
 6

 –
 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

s
h
o

u
ld

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 y

e
a

r 
6
. 

A
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p
le

 
p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y 

to
 1

9
.5

%
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3
 

1
9
.5

%
 

1
9
.1

%
 

T
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

s
 1

8
.4

%
 a

s
 1

9
.5

%
 i
s
 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
3
/1

4
. 
 

T
h
e
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 h

a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

h
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
u
rv

e
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

F
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e
 S

p
o

rt
iv

a
te

 –
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 1

4
 –

 2
5
 y

rs
 g

e
tt
in

g
 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 s
p
o

rt
. 

 
 T

h
e
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
3
 i
n
te

ri
m

 s
u
rv

e
y 

s
h
o

w
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
a
b

le
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
: 

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

IN
G

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

H
a
rr

o
w

  
  
  

  
  
1
9
.3

%
  

B
a
rn

e
t 

  
  
  

  
  
1
9
.1

%
  

E
a
lin

g
  
  

  
  
  

 1
8
.4

%
  
�

H
ill

in
g

d
o
n
  

  
  

1
7
.9

%
  

B
re

n
t 
  

  
  
  

  
  
1
6
.1

%
  

G
 

48



 
1
7
 

 
M

o
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
, 

y
o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 s

p
o
rt

 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 

P
E

 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

2
7
 

       

4
2
 

       

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 4

 L
o

n
d
o
n
 Y

o
u
th

 G
a
m

e
s
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 e

v
e
n
ts

 
th

a
t 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
n

u
a

lly
. 

In
 2

0
1
1
, 

H
a
rr

o
w

 o
n
ly

 
e
n
te

re
d
 t

h
e
 1

 B
o
c
c
ia

 E
v
e
n
t.

 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 w

e
 e

n
te

re
d
 3

 
e
v
e

n
ts

 –
 B

o
c
c
ia

, 
fo

o
tb

a
ll,

 s
w

im
m

in
g
. 

In
 2

0
1
3
, 

w
e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

B
o
c
c
ia

 a
n

d
 s

w
im

m
e
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

. 
2
0

1
4
 w

ill
 s

e
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 e
n
te

r 
a
ll 

4
 

e
v
e

n
ts

. 
 U

p
 t
o
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
2
, 

s
ix

 t
e

a
c
h
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
h
a

d
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 P

E
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
ig

h
t 

te
a
c
h

e
rs

 a
tt
e
n

d
e

d
 s

u
b
s
e

q
u
e

n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 

 

G
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 

h
e

a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 5

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

(W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 

fo
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

d
ir

e
c
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

0
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

7
6
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 t

o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 d

o
n
’t
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
C

A
M

H
S

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 

fo
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

d
ir

e
c
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

7
6
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 t

o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 d

o
n
’t
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 t

h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
C

A
M

H
S

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

4
2
%

 o
f 

fa
m

ily
-s

iz
e

d
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

5
1
%

 
3
5
%

 
4
5
%

 o
v
e
r 

2
0
1
1
-2

0
1

3
 p

e
ri

o
d
. 

T
h
e
 t
a

rg
e
t 

w
a
s
 s

e
t 

in
 

th
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 P

la
n
. 
W

e
 e

x
c
e
e

d
e

d
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t,

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 3

6
%

. 
A

 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 1

0
0

0
 

c
a
s
e
s
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

1
1

3
3
 

1
0

5
1
 

B
y 

ta
k
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 w

e
 a

re
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 l
o

w
. 

In
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

s
o

n
 w

it
h
 

o
th

e
r 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

w
e
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e
s
. 
 

G
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 4

- 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

49



 
1
8
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
o
rk

le
s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 e

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 g

a
in

. 
(B

a
s
e
lin

e
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 7

7
p

e
o
p
le

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
) 

1
0

9
 

1
8

3
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 s
u
p
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

is
 

n
o
t 
a

n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 

tr
e
n
d
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
 c

lie
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
 c

h
a
n

g
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

. 
 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 %

 d
if
fe

re
n
ti
a

l 
in

 j
o
b
s
e
e
k
e
r 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 (

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
ti
a
l 
1
.5

%
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
1
) 

1
.5

 
1
.5

 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
la

im
a

n
ts

 h
a
s
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
la

im
a
n
ts

 h
a
s
 d

ro
p

p
e
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

L
o
n
d

o
n
. 

 
A

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
lt
e

d
 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n
 v

a
c
a
n
c
y 

ra
te

 i
n

 H
a
rr

o
w

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

1
 V

a
c
a
n
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
s
 

6
.9

7
%

) 
7
.2

4
 

6
.9

4
 

E
n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
. 

G
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 5

 -
 P

ro
te

c
t 
v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

c
ri
m

e
, 

a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 a

b
u
s
e
 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

R
e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d
 b

y 
5
%

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

is
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

a
lit

y
 o

f 
y
o
u

n
g
 m

e
n
 f

ro
m

 
B

A
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 5

%
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

R
e
-

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 (

3
4
%

) 
�      %

 B
M

E
 

(6
5
.5

%
)  

R
e
-

o
ff

e
n
d
in

g
 (

4
4
%

) 
      %

 B
M

E
 

(5
7
.7

%
) 

 

R
e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 -

 O
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 c

a
s
e

lo
a
d

 i
s
 

d
e
c
re

a
s
in

g
, 

h
o

w
e
v
e
r 

re
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 w

it
h
in

 1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 3
4
%

 (
b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 O

c
t 
0
9
 

–
 S

e
p
 1

0
 c

o
h

o
rt

) 
to

 4
4

%
 (

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
0
 –

 
S

e
p
 1

1
 c

o
h

o
rt

).
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a

n
 t
h
e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
4
1

%
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
7
%

. 
� T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

c
la

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 B

M
E

 (
In

c
. 

B
la

c
k
, 
A

s
ia

n
, 

M
ix

e
d
 &

 
C

h
in

e
s
e
) 

h
a
s
 f

a
lle

n
 f

ro
m

 6
5
.5

%
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t

o
 

5
7
.7

%
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 f

ro
m

 
3
1
.0

%
 t

o
 3

2
.4

%
. 

R
 
�     G
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
e

a
t 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 s

e
e
n
 

b
y 

M
u

lt
i 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 

re
m

a
in

 b
e
lo

w
 2

5
%

 
3
3
%

 
1
3
%

 

W
h
ile

 t
h
e
 r

e
p

e
a
t 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
o

w
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 a
 

g
o

o
d
 t

h
in

g
 a

s
 i
t 

c
o
u
ld

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 p
o
o
r 

re
c
o
rd

 k
e

e
p
in

g
 

in
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 o

r 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
o
f 

le
s
s
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 

c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 M

A
R

A
C

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
p
la

c
e
. 

 O
v
e
ra

ll,
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

 
o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
to

 M
A

R
A

C
 i
s
 a

ro
u

n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
a
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
o
u
r 

s
iz

e
 a

n
d
 

G
 

50



 
1
9
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 

a
g

e
n
c
y
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 M

A
R

A
C

 a
n
d
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

�
�
�
��
��
��
	
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
	
��
�	
��
�
�
�
	
��
��
�
��
	
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
	
��
�
��

�
��
��

�	
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
��
�	
�
	
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
	
��
��
�
	
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�  

 
3
6
%

 

!
�
	
��
�
���
�
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
 
#�
$
��
�
��
��
	
��
	
��
�
��
��
�
	
�	
�
�%
�
���
	
#�
	
�
�

�
�
	
��
��
�
�
�&
��
'
�
�
��
(
� 
)
�
��
��
��
	
��
�
��
�

�
*�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	
��
�
�
�"
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
��	
�
+�
��
��
�
��
�&
��

A
 

,
	
��
�
�
	
��
	
��
�
��
	
�
+�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
	
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
�

-
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�.
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
 

8
9

5
 

1
1

7
3
 

A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Q

4
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 8
9
5
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
a
n

d
 2

4
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

in
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o
o

d
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
, 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

9
1
9
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o

d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
. 

 T
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 9

1
9
 

tr
a
in

e
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

2
4

6
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

ra
in

e
d
 b

u
t 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 a

n
d
 8

 
h
a
v
e
 f

a
ile

d
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 c

h
e
c
k
s
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
k
e
s
 t

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
ra

in
e

d
 s

in
c
e
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

b
e

g
a

n
 1

,1
7
3
. 

 M
o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
, 

w
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
m

m
a
n
d

e
r 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 h

is
 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 g

iv
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

re
c
ru

it
in

g
 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

n
e

w
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 
m

u
c
h
 n

e
e

d
e
d
 f

o
c
u
s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

a
re

a
. 

R
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
d
u
lt
s
 f

ro
m

 h
a
rm

 
(m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

8
0
%

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
e
e
lin

g
 s

a
fe

) 

n
/a

 
n
/a

 

N
o
te

: 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

o
ld

 A
C

C
U

 s
u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h

e
 A

C
C

U
 s

u
rv

e
y 

q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

c
h
a

n
g

in
g
 s

o
 t

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 o

ld
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 
T

h
e
 A

C
C

U
 s

u
rv

e
y 

w
ill

 b
e
 t
a
ilo

re
d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e
r 

k
e
y 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y 

w
h

ic
h
 p

o
p
u

la
te

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

o
n
 t
h

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
. 

 R
e
s
u
lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
 c

lie
n
t 

s
u
rv

e
y 

s
h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
p
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 5
5
.9

%
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 t

o
 

n
/a

 

51



 
2
0
 

6
1
.3

%
. 

T
h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 i
n
 1

3
th

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
n
 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 2

0
1
2

/1
3
 d

a
ta

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 T
e
n

a
n
t,

 L
e

a
s
e

h
o
ld

e
r 

&
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 7

5
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 t

o
 8

0
%

 b
y 

2
0

1
4
�

 
7
1
%

 

W
e
 s

e
t 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

h
o

w
s
 a

 
g
e

n
e

ra
l 
u
p

w
a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 s

p
it
e
 o

f 
a
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

c
lim

a
te

 (
+

5
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 2

0
0
8
 s

c
o
re

) 
a
n
d
 u

p
p
e

r 
m

id
d
le

 q
u
a

rt
ile

 b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

L
o
n

d
o

n
 1

2
/1

3
 

S
T

A
R

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
. 

 

G
 

,
	
��
�
�
	
��
�
�
�	
�
	
�
�	
�
��
�
	
�/
�
��
�
�
�/
�
�	
�.
��
�
	
��
�
�
�

.
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�!
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�'
��
��
�
�%
��
�
�

�
�
�
�	
��
��

��
�
	
��
�
�
��
��
��
�	

��
��
�
0	
��
��
	
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
 

 
�

 

T
h
e
 H

a
te

 C
ri
m

e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
. 

 H
a
te

 C
ri
m

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

G
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 6

 -
 M

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
b

u
d
g
e
t 
c
u
ts

 o
n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

a
re

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(E
q
IA

)  
n
/a

 
n
/a

 
A

lt
h
o

u
g

h
 t
h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

o
lic

y
, 

w
e
 c

o
u
ld

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
th

is
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 1
0

0
%

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

A
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
n
 E

q
IA

 
 

�
 

T
h
e
 E

q
IA

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 G

ro
u
p
 a

t 
e
a
c
h
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

G
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q
IA

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 e

a
c
h

 y
e

a
r  

n
/a

 
�

 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 

E
q
IA

's
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
ir

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 
p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
, 

p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

n
 

E
q
IA

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

  

A
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 7

 -
 C

e
le

b
ra

te
 t

h
e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o
h
e
s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 

a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 g

e
t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

R
A

G
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 %

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 b

e
lie

v
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 
lo

c
a
l 
a
re

a
 (

in
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 w

e
 s

c
o
re

d
 7

8
%

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 o

f 
a
ll 

L
o

n
d

o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
) 

7
3
%

 
7
7
%

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.
  

 A
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

C
o
h

e
s
io

n
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 f

o
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 e

n
d
o
rs

e
d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 H

S
P

. 
 

G
 

52



 
2
1
 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

te
n
s
io

n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 c

o
n

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o

n
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p
le

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 W

o
o
lw

ic
h

 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

a
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

w
e
re

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

le
a
d
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 k

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
. 

 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

e
re

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
).

 T
h
e

 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
h
a
te

 c
ri

m
e
, 

v
ia

 S
to

p
 H

a
te

 U
K

, 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
e
c
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
a
le

n
d
a

r 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

a
im

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 t
e

n
 e

v
e
n
ts

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

 

�
 

T
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

e
v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 

(C
h

a
n

u
k
a
h
 d

id
 n

o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

 s
e

p
a
ra

te
 f

e
s
ti
v
a
l 
in

 2
0

1
2

) 
b
u
t 
in

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e
 D

ia
m

o
n
d
 J

u
b
ile

e
 v

is
it
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

/P
a

ra
ly

m
p

ic
s
 T

o
rc

h
 R

e
la

y
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 b

y
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
c
to

r.
 

G
 

!
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
��

�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
	
	
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
�	
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	
��
��
��
�
�1
��
�	
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
��
��
�	

 

 

�
 

A
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 W

o
o
lw

ic
h
 

in
c
id

e
n
t.

  
G

 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 8

 -
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
h
a
t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a
lu

e
d
, 
re

s
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 

s
e
rv

e
s
 

W
e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
p
ri
l 

2
0

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h
 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n
g
 

a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 /
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 e
tc

 
R

A
G

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

1
6
-1

8
 y

e
a

r 
o
ld

s
 

w
h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

a
t 
a
 

m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

9
7
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

9
7
.5

%
 

9
8
%

 
C

o
n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 (

lo
w

e
s
t 

N
E

E
T

) 
in

 E
n
g

la
n
d
 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 A

s
ia

n
 

M
in

o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B

A
M

E
) 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
9
%

 –
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
)  

3
9
.8

7
%

 
4
0
.3

7
%

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e

d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n

d
 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
4
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 4

2
%

. 
 

 T
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 w

a
s
 

3
3
.7

%
. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
��
	
��
	
�
��

	
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�	
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
���
��
	
��
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
��

 (
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 

1
8
.2

%
 

1
8
.7

%
 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

w
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
s
 

to
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 h
ig

h
ly

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
. 

G
 

53



 
2
2
 

1
8
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
) 
 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 r

a
n
k
e
d
 3

rd
 o

f 
3
2
 L

o
n

d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
s
, 

w
h
e

n
 

b
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

2
0

1
1
/1

2
 d

a
ta

. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
  

(t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

) 
2
.0

7
%

 
1
.8

7
%

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b
e
rs

 
m

e
a
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 h
ig

h
ly

 v
o
la

ti
le

. 
 

 T
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 w

a
s
 

5
.2

%
. 

R
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

B
A

M
E

  
(t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
0
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
) 

1
7
.0

7
%

 
1
4
.9

6
%

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 a

re
 

s
m

a
ll 

(4
1
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h

e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

r 
is

 h
ig

h
ly

 
v
o
la

ti
le

 e
.g

. 
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
Q

tr
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

e
ll 

fr
o
m

 
1
7
.4

6
%

 t
o
 1

4
.9

6
%

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

n
e
 B

A
M

E
 p

e
rs

o
n
 l
e
ft

 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 e

m
p
lo

y 
a
n
d
 o

n
e
 o

th
e
r 

fe
ll 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 

to
p
 5

%
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

a
y
 s

c
a
le

 c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 t

e
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

  
[r

a
n
k
e

d
 1

0
/1

6
 o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 w

h
o
 m

a
d
e
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 –

 
L
A

P
S

 Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
] 

R
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

w
o
m

e
n
  

(t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
0
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
) 

4
4
.7

2
%

 
5
1
.1

8
%

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e

d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
o

w
e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 c

h
a
n

g
e
d
 a

s
 5

0
%

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 w

a
s
 

4
7
.7

%
. 

[r
a
n
k
e

d
 8

/1
6
 o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 w

h
o
 m

a
d

e
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 –

 
L
A

P
S

 Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
] 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e

 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 t

o
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

5
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

) 
1
.6

3
%

 
0
.7

9
%

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
lin

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 m
e

a
n
 t

h
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 h
ig

h
ly

 v
o
la

ti
le

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
y 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 w

a
s
 

4
.8

%
. 

[r
a
n
k
e

d
 1

5
/1

5
 o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 w

h
o
 m

a
d
e
 r

e
tu

rn
s
 –

 
L
A

P
S

 Q
4
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
] 

R
 

54



 
2
3
 

'W
e
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
te

n
d
e

d
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

o
 a

ll 
p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
t 
2
0
1
0
 

a
n

d
, 

o
n
c
e
 o

u
r 

re
c
o
rd

s
 a

re
 u

p
d

a
te

d
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

R
e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
.  

 
�

 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

M
a
ri
ta

l 
S

ta
tu

s
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n

 
E

m
p
lo

ym
e

n
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 a
s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 
re

p
o
rt

 t
h

is
. 

 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d
 

D
iv

e
rs

it
y 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 

 
�

 

A
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
E

q
u
a

lit
y 

a
n
d
 D

iv
e

rs
it
y 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a

rs
. 

 
P

e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

 t
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

re
v
ie

w
 t

o
o
k
 

p
la

c
e
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ilo

t 
e
v
e

n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

e
ll 

b
y
 m

a
n
a

g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

. 
 T

h
is

 n
o

w
 

fe
a
tu

re
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

G
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
  

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

ta
ff

 S
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 (
T

a
rg

e
t 
–
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
3

) 

 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

in
 M

a
y 

1
3
 

A
 l
a
rg

e
 s

ta
ff

 e
v
e
n
t 
a

n
d
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 

to
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 s

ta
ff

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 A

n
n

u
a
l 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 E

m
p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0

1
1
/1

2
 S

ta
ff

 
S

u
rv

e
y
. 
 T

h
e
ir
 i
d

e
a
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 b

u
ilt

 
in

to
 a

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 a

 s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
 

 
 

55



 
2
4
 

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 E
q

u
a
lit

y 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

 E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
–

 K
n

o
w

in
g

 y
o
u

r 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

 K
e

y
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
1
 :
 N

o
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 

2
 :

 C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y 

b
e
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

3
 :

 I
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

b
u
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

4
 :

 I
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

 

C
o

ll
e

c
ti

n
g

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
 3

.1
 T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h

a
n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 

n
e

e
d
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
, 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 m

e
t?

  

L
o

c
a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
 (

L
IS

) 
H

a
rr

o
w

 I
n
fo

rm
e
d
 i
s
 t

h
e

 B
o
ro

u
g

h
s
 L

o
c
a
l 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

L
IS

) 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 w
e
b
 

b
a
s
e
d
, 

c
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 d

a
ta

 h
u
b
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d
 

lo
c
a

l 
d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
. 

 It
 i
s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
to

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 d

a
ta

 s
to

ry
 -

 
h
o

w
 H

a
rr

o
w

 i
s
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 i
n
 i
ts

 p
o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
, 

c
ri
m

e
, 

h
e

a
lt
h
, 

e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
&

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y.
 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 V
it

a
li

ty
 P

ro
fi

le
s
 –

 T
h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
V

it
a
lit

y 
P

ro
fi
le

s
 w

e
re

 f
ir
s
t 

la
u

n
c
h

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
u
m

m
it
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

1
9
th

 M
a

y
 2

0
0
4
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 b

ri
n

g
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o

u
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
it
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

, 
e
a
s
y
-t

o
-u

s
e
 

fo
rm

a
t.

  

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 1

2
 t

o
p
ic

-b
a
s
e

d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 o

n
 a

 m
a
p
, 

w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

b
u
lle

t 
p
o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 e

x
p

la
n
a
to

ry
 t

e
x
t.
 W

h
e
re

 
a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
a
 w

a
rd

 b
a

r 
c
h
a
rt

 a
n
d
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 a

n
d
 

T
h

e
 H

U
B

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
h

a
s
 m

a
n

y
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
, 
it

 
w

il
l:

 

�
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a

n
a
g
e

rs
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 

fo
rm

u
la

ti
n

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
re

s
p
o

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 k

e
y
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 

re
s
h
a

p
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

�
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 &

 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e
 c

a
p

a
b
ili

ty
 

b
y 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 d

a
ta

 
a
n
a
ly

s
ts

 a
n

d
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
e
rs

 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

  
�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

w
o
 w

a
y
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 

b
y 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 &

 
s
ig

n
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 

 �
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 u

p
d
a
te

 
k
e
y 

d
a
ta

 c
o

lla
ti
o

n
 

s
ys

te
m

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 c

o
lla

te
d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

P
ro

te
c
te

d
 

C
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 �
 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 

n
o
t 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o

n
, 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 

s
to

ra
g

e
 (

w
it
h
 

a
d

e
q
u

a
te

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
) 

a
n

d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
h
a

ri
n
g
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 w
o

u
ld

 s
a
v
e
 

m
o
n
e

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 m

o
re

 d
a
ta

 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 �
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 T

O
R

, 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 k
e

y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

56



 
2
5
 

3
.1

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h

a
n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

N
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 b

a
r 

c
h

a
rt

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 

d
is

p
la

y
e

d
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

e
d
it
io

n
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

p
a

re
s
 

s
o
m

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

it
h
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 V

it
a
lit

y
 P

ro
fi
le

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
. 

 J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
(J

S
N

A
) 

–
 T

h
e
 J

S
N

A
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a

n
g
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

th
a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
to

 h
e
lp

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
lt
h
, 

w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 o

f 
a
 

lo
c
a

l 
p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
. 

 

T
h
e
 J

S
N

A
 i
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
e
t 

o
f 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

. 
It

 
c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

, 
p
la

n
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

e
n
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 J

S
N

A
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 i
s
 

u
s
e

d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p
le

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 

R
e
a

b
le

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

 O
u

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
 –

 I
s
 a

 n
a
rr

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

w
h
ic

h
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b

u
t 

a
d
d

re
s
s
 i
n
e

q
u

a
lit

y,
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
', 

c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

' a
n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

' r
e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
d

a
ta

  
�
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 

u
n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
ir
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

�
 

B
o
o
s
t 

tr
a

n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y 

o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
s
u
p
p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
 d

a
ta

 
a
g
e
n

d
a
  

�
 

S
ti
m

u
la

te
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
  

�
 

E
n
s
u
re

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 g
o

o
d
 

u
n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

it
s
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 a

d
a

p
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
f 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
. 

    

a
n

d
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
ll 

n
in

e
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
  

                            

57



 
2
6
 

3
.1

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h

a
n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

e
q

u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d
 f

o
s
te

r 
g
o
o

d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ry
 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y 
s
e
ts

 o
f 

d
a
ta

 
w

h
ic

h
 t

e
ll 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 s
to

ry
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 
o
f 

o
u
r 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
c
ri
m

e
, 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
a

tt
a
in

m
e

n
t 
a
n

d
 w

h
o
’s

 
u
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 

 E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 i

n
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

re
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 h

e
a

d
lin

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
tu

re
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 a

g
e
, 
d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
ra

c
e
, 

s
e
x
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

p
re

g
n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y,

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 o

n
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
 

le
a
v
e
 a

s
 t

h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 o

n
ly

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 d
a
ta

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

 
 T

h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 d

e
ta

ils
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

ro
fi
le

, 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

m
o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
; 

ta
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 o
rg

a
n

is
e
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
; 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e

d
u
re

s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
n
d
u
c
t,

 c
a

p
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 d

ig
n
it
y 

a
t 

w
o
rk

 c
a
s
e
s
; 
le

a
v
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
v
e

ra
n
c
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
, 

a
n
d
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 
a
n

n
u
a
l 
re

p
o

rt
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

�
 

L
IS

 
�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 V
it
a
lit

y 
P

ro
fi
le

s
 

�
 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 g

iv
e
s
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
 s

o
u

n
d
 b

a
s
is

 
fo

r 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 

p
ro

m
p
t 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
m

o
v
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 

a
m

b
it
io

n
 o

f 
a
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

h
a
t 

re
fl
e
c
ts

 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y 

in
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

        �
 

U
p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 

                                

58



 
2
7
 

3
.1

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h

a
n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

�
 

J
S

N
A

 
�
 

O
u
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
 

�
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

a
n
e
ls

 D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

�
 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 o

ft
e
n
 i
s
 d

a
ta

 
g
a
th

e
re

d
?
  

L
o

c
a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
 –

 L
IS

 
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

e
a
c
h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

fr
o
m

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d

a
ta

 p
a
c
k
s
 f

ro
m

 
O

x
fo

rd
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
o
c
ia

l 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
. 
W

e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

p
o
lic

e
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
 l
o
c
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

c
o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r�
�

 J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
(J

S
N

A
) 

–
 T

h
e
 J

S
N

A
 w

a
s
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 

a
n

d
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
is

 c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
. 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 V
it

a
li

ty
 P

ro
fi

le
s
 

O
u

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
 –

 t
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 
b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
, 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 

a
n

n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

. 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 g

a
p

s
 

in
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
?
 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

e
s

t 
o

f 
R

e
le

v
a
n

c
e
  

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n
s
u

re
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
n
-d

e
p
th

 
u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

w
e
 a

re
 i
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 T
e
s
t 

o
f 

R
e
le

v
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

o
u
r 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
ic

h
 o

n
e
s
 w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
lla

te
 

e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 /

 u
s
e
r 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r,

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 

u
p

d
a
te

 o
u
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 t

h
e
n
 b

e
 t
a
k
e

n
 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

d
a
ta

 d
ri
v
e
s
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

-b
a
s
e

d
 p

o
lic

y 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

         �
 

T
h
e
 T

e
s
t 

o
f 

R
e
le

v
a
n
c
e
 h

e
lp

s
 

ta
rg

e
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 e

ff
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 o

u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

                    

59



 
2
8
 

3
.1

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 c
h

a
n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
  

�
 

M
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 M

o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

 

 

A
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 U
s
in

g
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
 

3
.2

 E
q

u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y,

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n

d
 a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
d
a
ta

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 3

.5
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 i
s
 t
h

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
?
  

             W
h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e

re
 o

f 
g
a

p
s
 b

e
in

g
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d
?

 

T
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

y 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e

ir
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 s
c
o
re

c
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

s
. 

T
h

e
s
e
 w

ill
 t

h
e
n
 

b
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

y 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

a
n
n
u

a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

�
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p
o

rt
s
 

�
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p
o

rt
 

 
 

 
 

H
a
v
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

e
q

u
a
lit

y 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t?

  
O

u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
e
a

rc
h
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

u
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 o

u
r 

S
in

g
le

 

�
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
s
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 �
 

O
u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
  

    

�
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y 
a
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 

th
e
ir

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 �
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

a
n

n
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

re
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

C
E

G
, 
C

S
B

 
a
n

d
 P

&
F

 
  

60



 
2
9
 

3
.2

 E
q

u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y,

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n

d
 a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
d
a
ta

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 3

.5
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

S
E

S
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
/d

a
ta

 b
e
in

g
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 P

S
E

D
. 

 O
u
r 

d
ra

ft
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

s
ix

 
w

e
e
k
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 2

4
th

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 t
o
 4

th
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a
ir
e
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

 
s
e
p
a
ra

te
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

 f
o
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

n
a
ir

e
 w

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 s

e
n
t 

o
u
t 
to

 t
h

e
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 P
a

n
e
l.
 A

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
ls

o
 

to
o
k
 p

la
c
e
. 
A

 c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

y 
b
ri

e
fi
n
g
 w

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 h

e
ld

 f
o
r 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 In

te
rn

a
lly

, 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
d
 t
h

ro
u
g
h
 T

h
e
 

G
ra

p
e
v
in

e
, 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
lle

ti
n
, 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 n
e
w

s
le

tt
e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

a
n

e
t 

a
n
d
 v

ia
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q

u
a
lit

y 
T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
s
. 

E
x
te

rn
a
lly

, 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 P
re

s
s
 

R
e
le

a
s
e
, 

e
m

a
ils

 t
o
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

v
ia

 H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
, 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

                                

61



 
3
0
 

3
.2

 E
q

u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y,

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n

d
 a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
d
a
ta

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 3

.5
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

D
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
s
. 

  
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

�
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
s
e
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
?
 

T
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

e
a
s
u
re

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 u

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

la
te

s
t 

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 d

a
ta

/i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

          

 

S
h

a
ri

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 
 

3
.3

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 h
o
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

th
is

 m
a
y 

h
a

v
e
 o

n
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 r
o

b
u
s
t 

a
n

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

fo
r 

s
h
a
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
?
  

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 t
e
m

p
la

te
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
ri

n
g
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o
 w

h
ic

h
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t 

re
la

te
d
 a

p
p
e
n

d
ic

e
s
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 a

d
d

e
d
 c

o
v
e
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
v
it
y.

  
 H

e
a
th

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 u
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 

J
S

N
A

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
u
n

d
e
rp

in
s
 t

h
e
 

a
n
n
u

a
l 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n
. 

 T
h
e
 T

o
p
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
ts

 

 
 

62



 
3
1
 

s
tu

d
y
 c

o
h
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 d

a
ta

 
s
h
a
ri
n

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 
p

o
o
le

d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
h

a
t 

c
o
n
s
u
m

e
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
p
u

b
lic

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
  

 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 i
s
 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

e
t?

  

T
h
e
 c

h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y 
d

a
ta

/e
v
id

e
n
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
e
c
id

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e
: 

P
u
b
lic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 J

o
in

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

; 
B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y 

C
a
p

a
c
it
y
; 

H
e
a

lt
h
; 

W
o
rk

le
s
s
n
e
s
s
/W

e
lf
a
re

 a
n

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 a

d
d

e
d
  

T
h
e
 O

u
t 

o
f 

H
o
s
p
it
a

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y;

 
C

lo
s
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 

J
o
in

in
g
 u

p
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
c
to

r.
 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

B
u
d
g

e
ts

 –
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
 h

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 
  

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 t
im

e
ly

, 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 i
s
 t
h

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 u

s
in

g
?
 

T
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 t

o
 

ta
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

fr
e
s
h
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 

 
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
–

 L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

, 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 V

is
io

n
 

 3
.4

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o
h
e
re

n
t,

 s
h
a
re

d
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
, 

w
it
h
 c

le
a
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
k
e
y 

s
ta

k
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
c
to

r.
 (

L
in

k
s
 t

o
 3

.2
, 

3
.3

))
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
W

h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

63



 
3
2
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

m
a
k
e
?
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

D
o
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

p
o
lit

ic
ia

n
s
 o

w
n
 a

n
d
 

a
rt

ic
u
la

te
 a

 c
le

a
r 

lo
c
a
l 

n
a

rr
a
ti
v
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

lo
c
a

l 
e
q

u
a
lit

y 
p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 
a
n

d
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
?
 

 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
a

n
d
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e

n
c
y
 G

ro
u
p
 

c
h
a
ir

e
d
 b

y
 a

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

: 
A

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n

e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 

O
u
r 

C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
  
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

1
. 

K
e
e
p
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u

rh
o

o
d
s
 c

le
a
n
, 

g
re

e
n
 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

 
2
. 

U
n
it
e

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
: 

a
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

th
a
t 

lis
te

n
s
 a

n
d
 l
e

a
d
s
 

3
. 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 m
o
s
t 

in
 n

e
e

d
 

4
. 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

u
r 

s
h

o
p
p

in
g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
C

le
a
n

e
r,

 S
a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 F

a
ir
e

r.
 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q

u
a
li

ty
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 

O
u
r 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

in
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
 (

C
E

G
) 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r,
 t

h
e
 u

n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

  

 
�
 

W
o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o
 s

h
a
re

 d
a
ta

 
o
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

in
e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

 
u
p
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 i
n
e

q
u
a
lit

y 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
  

64



 
3
3
 

 
 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

 
3
.5

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.6
, 

3
.1

6
, 

3
.1

7
).

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

C
a
n
 s

ta
ff

, 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
r 

th
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
g
iv

e
 a

n
y
 

g
o

o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
  

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 

 S
m

a
rt

W
a

te
r 

 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n
 

P
o
lic

e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

S
m

a
rt

w
a
te

r,
 a

 t
ra

c
e
a
b
le

 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 m

a
rk

in
g
 p

ro
d
u
c
t,

 f
re

e
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

e
 

to
 h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
S

m
a
rt

w
a
te

r 
c
a
n
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 v

a
lu

a
b
le

 i
te

m
s
 a

n
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u

g
h
 i
t 

d
ri

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
is

ib
le

, 
it
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

s
e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

u
lt
ra

v
io

le
t 

lig
h
t 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 r
e
s
id

u
e
 

c
a
n
 b

e
 t

ra
c
k
e

d
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 t
h
e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 w

h
e
re

 
it
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
p

p
lie

d
. 

 T
h
is

 a
llo

w
s
 t
h
e
 

P
o
lic

e
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 r
e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 i
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 t

h
e
ir
 c

h
a

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

 
p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 a

s
 i
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
v
e
d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

it
e
m

s
 a

re
 s

to
le

n
. 
 S

m
a
rt

w
a
te

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

in
 a

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
v
is

it
 b

y
 P

o
lic

e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h
o
 

s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t
o
 u

s
e
 i
t 

a
n

d
 

a
ls

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y 

to
 t

a
lk

 t
o
 

h
o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
b
o
u
t 

o
th

e
r 

c
ri
m

e
-r

e
la

te
d
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
o
 t

h
e
m

. 
 

T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
:-

 t
o
 

 
�
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

E
q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
re

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
 

a
n

y
 s

h
a

re
d
 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 
c
o
u

ld
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 

th
e
m

 
  

65



 
3
4
 

3
.5

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.6
, 

3
.1

6
, 

3
.1

7
).

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

b
u
rg

la
ry

; 
to

 r
e

d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri
m

e
; 
a
n
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 d
o
in

g
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 c

ri
m

e
. 

 S
o
 f

a
r,

 o
v
e
r 

3
0
,0

0
0
 

h
o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
t 
b

u
t 
e
v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 

S
ta

g
e
. 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 H
a
te

 C
ri

m
e
 F

o
ru

m
 

G
o
o

d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 H

a
te

 C
ri
m

e
 a

s
 c

it
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 M

in
is

tr
y
 o

f 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 M

a
y
o
rs

 
o
ff

ic
e
 f

o
r 

P
o
lic

in
g
 a

n
d
 C

ri
m

e
 (

p
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 H
a
rr

o
w

 I
n
te

rn
e
t 
p
ro

je
c
t)

 a
n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

R
o
a

d
 s

h
o
w

s
  

to
 b

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

d
 

in
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1
4
  

 S
p

e
c
ia

li
s
e
d

 W
e
e
k

e
n

d
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
 

In
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

jo
in

tl
y 

b
y
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 P

A
IW

A
N

D
 

(A
n
 A

fg
h
a
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o

n
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
in

g
 i
n
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 S

u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
a

im
in

g
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 r

u
n
 a

 w
e

e
k
e
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o
l 
fo

r 
5
0

-
6
0
 d

is
a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 f

ro
m

 H
a
rr

o
w

 
s
tu

d
y
in

g
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 a
n
d
 2

. 
T

h
e
 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
s
is

te
d
 a

ll 
m

e
t 
th

e
 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
‘n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 g
a
p
’ 
d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

s
u
rp

a
s
s
e
d
 i
ts

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

6
0
 a

n
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

1
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

66



 
3
5
 

3
.5

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.6
, 

3
.1

6
, 

3
.1

7
).

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

4
0
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 

lis
t.

 I
n
it
ia

l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

v
ir
tu

a
lly

 a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

m
o
v
in

g
 u

p
 s

e
ts

, 
a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 c

a
tc

h
in

g
 u

p
 

o
r 

h
a
v
e
 c

a
u
g
h
t 

u
p
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e
rs

. 
 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 

W
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri

b
b
e
a

n
 

a
n
d
 I

ri
s
h
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
s
, 
a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 
e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 l
o

w
e
r 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
a
d
h
e

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
M

e
d

ic
a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r’
s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 D
u

e
 t

o
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
, 

it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 

o
u
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

n
e

e
d
s
 

o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

a
te

s
. 

 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
w

o
m

e
n

’s
 b

a
d
m

in
to

n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 
h
e
ld

 a
t 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 t

o
 

e
n
c
o
u

ra
g

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
re

 w
o
m

e
n
 

fr
o
m

 a
n
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
. 

 T
h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l,
 

a
n
d
, 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

p
la

n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 t
o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f

o
r 

a
 

lo
n

g
e
r 

p
e
ri

o
d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 

 I
w

a
n

a
a
ji 

S
o
m

a
li 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 

o
v
e
r 

£
1
2
,0

0
0
 i
n
 D

e
c
e

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0

9
 b

y 
th

e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

a
d
u
lt
s
’ 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

p
o

rt
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a
s
 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d
 i
n
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0

1
0
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

d
a
te

 t
h
re

e
 S

o
m

a
li 

W
o
m

e
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

tr
a
in

e
d
 a

s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

W
a
lk

 L
e
a
d

e
rs

 i
n
 

67



 
3
6
 

3
.5

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.6
, 

3
.1

6
, 

3
.1

7
).

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 N
H

S
. 

 F
o
c
u
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 1

0
0
 

S
o
m

a
li 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 m
a
jo

ri
ty

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 

b
e
in

g
 w

o
m

a
n
. 

 S
e
le

c
ti
v
e
 b

a
d
m

in
to

n
 a

n
d
 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 h

a
v
e
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 

s
e
t 
u
p
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 t
h
e

ir
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 

n
e
e
d
s
. 

 T
o

p
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
: 

 T
h
is

 d
ra

ft
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
is

 t
o
o
 e

a
rl
y
 t

o
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

 S
a
fe

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

: 
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
iv

il 
d
is

tu
rb

a
n
c
e
s
; 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 

H
a
te

 C
ri
m

e
; 
ta

c
k
lin

g
 D

V
; 

G
a
n
g
 w

o
rk

. 
e
tc

 
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
li

s
a
ti

o
n

: 
T

h
e
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 

a
g
e
n

d
a
 m

o
re

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 f
it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

to
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
n
e

e
d
. 

 P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
T

ra
v
e
l:

 W
h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n
d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t

o
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
n
e

e
d
s
 t

ra
n
s
p

o
rt

, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
re

 
b
e
in

g
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
c
e
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e
l 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n
tl
y
 

o
p
e
n

in
g
 u

p
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 
o
p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

re
v
ie

w
 m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
?
  

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

tr
o

u
g
h
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a

rd
s
 

68



 
3
7
 

3
.5

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.6
, 

3
.1

6
, 

3
.1

7
).

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

a
n

e
ls

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
ig

h
 

le
v
e

l 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

ll 
re

c
e

iv
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

th
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

y
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

b
im

o
n
th

ly
 

 T
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

re
p
o
rt

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 

‘E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

L
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

in
g
 e

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

c
ro

s
s
-o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

le
a
rn

in
g
 i
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
?
 

  

H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 C

e
n
tr

e
, 

A
g
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 

H
A

D
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
’s

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

 A
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 G

ro
u
p
 c

o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
L
e
g
a
l 
a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

o
f 

th
e
 U

n
io

n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h

e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 

th
e
 E

q
IA

's
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 

69



 
3
8
 

3
.5

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a

lit
y 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.6
, 

3
.1

6
, 

3
.1

7
).

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f

o
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 E

q
IA

's
. 

 H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 

in
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

y 
ra

n
d

o
m

ly
 s

e
le

c
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

q
IA

's
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h

e
s
e
 f

ro
m

 a
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

/ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e
r 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f

e
e
d
b

a
c
k
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p
. 
 

 
 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 
 

3
.6

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y 

a
n
a

ly
s
is

. 
(L

in
k
s
 t
o
 3

.1
5
; 
3
.1

6
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

C
a
n
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
a
n

a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 n
e

e
d
s
 o

r 
p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
?
 

   

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 P

ro
c

e
s
s
 2

0
1
1
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
2
-1

5
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 £

1
7
m

 o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l,
 a

n
 E

q
IA

 w
a
s
 

u
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 
 M

a
n

y 
o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
e

re
 s

ti
ll 

a
t 

a
 f

o
rm

a
ti
v
e
 s

ta
g

e
 

w
h
e

n
 t
h

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

u
t 

a
 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 g

iv
e
n

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

fu
n
d
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 a
n

y
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
n

o
t 
to

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 i
f 

�
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 e
n
s
u

re
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

a
re

 k
e
y
 t

o
 o

u
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 

e
n
a
b

le
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

u
n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 h

o
w

 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 w
ill

 
a
ff

e
c
t 

o
u
r 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

q
IA

's
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
n

d
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

 

70



 
3
9
 

a
 f

u
ll 

E
q
IA

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
a
n
d
 f

u
lly

 w
o
rk

e
d
 

u
p
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t.

  
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s
s

e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
a
li

ty
 

A
s
s

u
ra

n
c
e
 G

ro
u

p
 

 A
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 o

ff
e
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 

k
e

y 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I
m

p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

 o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
s
 

c
le

a
r 

fo
r 

d
e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
e
rs

. 
  

 
 

 
 

C
a
n
 t

h
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
w

 o
r 

w
h
e
re

 e
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
 

 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 

 �
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
E

q
IA

, 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
E

q
IA

's
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

a
n

e
ls

  
�
 

D
is

a
b
le

d
G

o
  

�
 

M
e

a
ls

 o
n
 W

h
e
e
ls

 
�
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

 
 

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 

 
3
.7

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 a
 c

le
a
r 

lin
k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
ir

 e
q
u
a
lit

y 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

it
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

(L
in

k
s
 t

o
 3

.5
, 

3
.7

, 
3
.1

6
, 
3
.1

7
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
?
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e

re
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
  

   

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

e
p
o

rt
 p

ro
d
u
c
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
p
 

o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

O
u
r 

H
a

rr
o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
, 

 

 
�
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
w

id
e
ly

 s
o
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

d
 a

n
d
 

71



 
4
0
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

p
ri

o
ri
ty

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

d
?

  
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
s
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

a
n
n
u

a
lly

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

s
te

p
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
f 

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

?
 

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 F

in
a

n
c
e
 S

u
b
-c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

h
a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

  
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
?
 

 

V
C

S
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 s

it
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

E
G

 a
n

d
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 a

 Q
A

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

n
 E

q
IA

s
 

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
  

 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

 
3
.8

 T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

s
 i
ts

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 o
th

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

h
a
re

s
 i
ts

 e
x
p
e
ri
e

n
c
e
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r.
 (

L
in

k
s
 t

o
 3

.8
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

D
o
e
s
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 

it
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
?
  

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
h

a
re

s
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

L
o

n
d
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

re
v
ie

w
 m

e
c
h
a

n
is

m
s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
?
  

  

S
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 a

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

B
o
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

L
e
a
d

e
r 

a
n

d
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 h
o
ld

e
rs

  

 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e

d
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u
lt
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

  

�
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 /

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
: 

�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

tr
a
v
e
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 

�
 

S
h
a
re

 E
q

u
a
lit

y 
O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

L
o

n
d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
 v

ia
 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 s

h
a

re
 

b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

72



 
4
1
 

�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
ig

n
a

g
e
 a

n
d
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
 

�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 –

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
 s

ta
ff

 a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

t 
s
ta

ti
o

n
s
, 

ra
m

p
s
 e

tc
 

�
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

lo
b

b
y
in

g
 r

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

�
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 

e
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

it
h
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

�
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 

T
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

u
t 

m
a

y 
in

c
lu

d
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 
re

g
a
rd

 t
o
 w

id
e
n

in
g
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 s
in

g
le

 v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

–
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

d
e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 i
n
 t

u
rn

 g
iv

e
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 

p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

n
e

e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

in
 a

 w
a

y
 w

h
ic

h
 b

e
s
t 
s
u
it
s
 

th
e
ir
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

 

73



 
4
2
 

�
 

J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 –

 S
h

a
p
in

g
 A

 H
e
a
lt
h
ie

r 
F

u
tu

re
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
e
re

 
a
b
le

 t
o
 c

h
a

lle
n
g
e
 N

H
S

 
N

W
 L

o
n
d
o

n
’s

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

fo
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

c
a
re

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 s
y
s
te

m
 v

ia
 

th
e
 J

H
O

S
C

. 
 I

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r,

 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e
rn

e
d
 w

it
h
 

re
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 e

q
u
a

lit
y 

o
f 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 
re

s
u
lt
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
h

o
s
p

it
a
ls

. 
 T

h
e
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 N

o
rt

h
w

ic
k
 

P
a
rk

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
o
th

e
rs

 d
id

 n
o
t 

ta
k
e
 i
n
to

 
a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 r

a
il 

o
r 

tu
b
e
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 c

lo
s
e
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

h
o
s
p
it
a

l.
  
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

re
a
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 

N
H

S
 N

W
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

  

E
ff

e
c

ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 
 

3
.9

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 g

a
in

e
d
 a

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 i
ts

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
c
to

r 
p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
b
a
la

n
c
in

g
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
n

g
 i
n
te

re
s
ts

 a
n
d
 f

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 g

o
o
d
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
. 

(L
in

k
s
 t

o
 3

.7
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

C
a
n
 s

ta
ff

, 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
r 

th
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

T
e
n

s
io

n
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 
 

�
 

P
u
b
lic

is
e
 o

u
r 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
o
re

 t
o
 

74



 
4
3
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
g
iv

e
 a

n
y
 

g
o

o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
h
o

w
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

e
n

a
b
le

d
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

o
r 

m
a
n
a

g
e
 t

e
n

s
io

n
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
?
  

�
 

M
o
s
q
u

e
 P

ro
te

s
ts

, 
H

a
la

l 
M

e
a
t,
 

R
e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

io
ts

 (
s
e
e
 3

.1
2
) 

�
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 a

 t
h
ir

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

�
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

T
a
x
i 
c
a

rd
 a

n
d
 d

a
y
 c

a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 

�
 

T
a
le

n
t 

tr
a
c
k
e
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o

w
s
 g

o
o

d
 

h
a
rm

o
n

y
 w

it
h
in

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
  

   

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 d

o
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 m
a
n

a
g
e
 

th
e
 c

o
n
fl
ic

ti
n

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
?
  

H
S

P
 

A
g
re

e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 e

tc
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 d

o
 t

h
e

y
 g

o
 a

b
o
u
t 

n
e

g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 

p
ri

o
ri
ti
e
s
?
 

H
S

P
/H

C
E

 
A

g
re

e
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 e

tc
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

h
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ri
s
e
 

 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y,

 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
e
c
to

r,
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

  

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
u

ri
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
3
.1

0
 T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 /

 p
ro

c
u

re
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o

rt
in

g
 i
ts

 e
q

u
a
lit

y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 3

.5
, 

3
.1

7
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
c
a

p
tu

re
d
 

a
n

d
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o

d
?
  

  

R
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q
u

a
lit

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 c
h

a
in

 i
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 

(e
n
d

o
rs

e
d
 b

y
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

O
c
t 
2
0
1
1
) 

 
 

A
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y 
is

 
e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

T
o

o
lk

it
, 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

ll 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 o
n
 t

h
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
u
b
 (

in
tr

a
n
e
t)

 
 

P
Q

Q
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 e
q

u
a
lit

y 
a
re

 

 
�
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

w
o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 t
o
 

a
ll 

m
a
n
a

g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 p

o
lic

y
  

75



 
4
4
 

m
a
n
d

a
to

ry
 a

n
d
 e

m
b
e
d

d
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

B
ra

v
o
 e

-p
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 

 “T
e
m

p
la

te
” 

IT
T

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 e

q
u

a
lit

y 
a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 T

o
o
lk

it
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir

 u
s
e
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 b

e
in

g
 

a
p

p
lie

d
 f

o
r 

le
s
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
ly

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

o
r 

w
h
e

re
 

th
e
 e

q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

/r
e

le
v
a
n
c
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

le
s
s
 o

b
v
io

u
s
) 

a
n
d
 a

t 
a
ll 

s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

re
le

v
a
n
c
e
?
  

 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 a

 m
a
n

d
a
to

ry
 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

P
Q

Q
s
 u

s
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 w

h
e
re

 
p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 b

o
u

g
h
t 

w
it
h
 n

o
 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y
 

n
o
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

/ 
te

n
d
e
rs

 o
f 

th
a
t 

n
a
tu

re
  

 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
h
a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

 
‘h

e
a
tm

a
p
’ 
to

 e
n
a

b
le

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 I

T
T

s
 e

q
u
a

lit
y 

s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il.
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

IT
T

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 

a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 t

e
n

d
e
re

d
 (

e
.g

. 
b

a
ili

ff
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
a
ir

s
 &

 m
a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
, 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
w

in
d

o
w

 c
le

a
n
in

g
, 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
) 

  

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
a
n

d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r?

 
 

T
h
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

P
o

lic
y
, 

e
q
u
a

lit
y 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 P

Q
Q

 
a
n
d
 I

T
T

 a
n
d
 t
h

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
m

, 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

, 
h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t,

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n

p
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
  

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 h

is
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t.

  
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 

76



 
4
5
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 o
n
 t

h
is

, 
a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 t

a
lk

 t
o
 t

h
e
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

d
ir

e
c
tl
y 

re
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 (
e
.g

. 
b
a
ili

ff
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
t 

p
re

s
e
n
t)

. 
T

h
u
s
 w

e
 s

e
e
k
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 ‘
tr

ia
n
g
le

’ 
o
f 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 t

e
a

m
s
. 

 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 P
u

b
li

c
 L

if
e
 

 
3
.1

1
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
u
n
d

e
r-

re
p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 r
o
le

s
 a

n
d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 

a
n

d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

m
o
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
?
 

  

�
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 P
a
n

e
l 

�
 

Y
o

u
th

 P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

�
 

V
o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 1

,2
0

0
 t
ra

in
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

s
 H

e
ro

e
s
  

  

 
 

 
 

A
re

 m
o
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 

u
n

d
e
r-

re
p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
?
  

 

�
 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 

�
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 P
a
n

e
l 

�
 

Y
o

u
th

 P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

�
 

V
o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 d
ra

w
n
 f

ro
m

 a
 

w
id

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
?

 
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 e

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 i
s
 

v
ib

ra
n
t;
 v

o
ti
n

g
 i
n
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n
 

th
e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 
re

fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
u

r 
c
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

. 
 

 In
 2

0
1
0
 C

llr
 A

s
a
d
 O

m
a
r 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

M
u
s
lim

 M
a

y
o

r 
in

 H
a
rr

o
w

. 
 H

e
 h

a
s
 c

h
o
s
e

n
 

 
�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 m

a
k
e
 u

p
 

o
f 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 P
a
n
e
l 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 i
t 

is
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

 �
 

T
a
k
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 o
u
r 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y 

 
 �
 

T
a
k
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 o
u
r 

Y
o

u
th

 
P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y 

 
 

77



 
4
6
 

a
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
T

h
e
m

e
 o

f 
“C

e
le

b
ra

ti
n
g
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 

&
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
”.

  
H

e
 a

ls
o
 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 e

n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 c
le

a
r 

p
re

c
e

d
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

fi
rs

t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

e
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
in

ly
 w

it
h
in

 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 W
e
 r

e
c
o

g
n
is

e
 t
h

a
t 
h
is

 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
ra

lt
y
 

re
a
c
h
in

g
 a

 f
a
r 

w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 M

a
y
o

r 
in

 c
re

a
ti
n
g
 a

 L
o
c
a

l 
M

a
y
o
r 

fo
r 

a
 L

o
c
a
l 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 e

th
o
s
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y 

h
a
d
 M

a
y
o

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

B
A

M
E

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

w
h

ic
h
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e
 

m
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
o
u
r 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 

  A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r’
s
 I
n

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 k

e
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 w

e
re

: 
- 

R
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 &

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
e
c
to

r 
- 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 &

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y 

 T
h
e
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 p

la
n

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

re
p
e

a
t 
e
v
e
n
ts

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
n
g
o
in

g
 T

ra
in

in
g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 

F
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 G

o
o

d
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 

 
3
.1

2
 L

o
c
a

l 
p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

b
o
u
t 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h

a
t 
h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 h

a
te

 c
ri

m
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
a

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 
p
ri
v
a
te

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

rs
 t

o
 f

o
s
te

r 
g
o

o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

78



 
4
7
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

h
o

w
 t
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

–
 

p
e

rc
e
p
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 

q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

, 
a
n
d
 m

e
d
ia

 
re

p
o
rt

s
?
  

 

In
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 
P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

2
0

0
9
/2

0
1
0
) 

7
8
%

 
o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y 

b
e
lie

v
e
d
 

p
e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

o
t 
o

n
 

w
e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

in
 t
h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
re

a
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
is

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

R
e
p

u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
a
n

a
ly

s
is

 
s
h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 7

7
%

. 
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 H

e
ro

e
s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

a
w

a
rd

s
 

c
e
re

m
o
n

y
. 
In

 2
0

1
2
 a

p
p

ro
x
 1

0
0
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 
w

e
re

 n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
. 

 O
n
e
-4

-O
n
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 –

 c
o

u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

w
it
h
 

lo
c
a

l 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 N

e
w

 A
rr

iv
a
ls

 T
a
s
k
 F

o
rc

e
. 
H

a
v
in

g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

o
m

a
li 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

th
e
 t

a
s
k
fo

rc
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

fg
h

a
n
 a

n
d
 T

a
m

il 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 U
n

d
e
r 

o
n

e
 S

k
y
/C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

o
f 

e
v
e

n
ts

 
(J

o
h
n
 T

u
c
k
e

r)
 

 N
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s
 (

L
in

d
a
 

A
n
o
u
s
is

) 
 W

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
A

c
ti

o
n

 (
 (

L
in

d
a
 A

n
o
u
s
is

) 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
w

h
e
re

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e

d
 

te
n
s
io

n
s
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
?
 

T
e
n

s
io

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 h

a
la

l 
m

e
a
t 

is
s
u

e
: 

- 
jo

in
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 I
n
te

r 
F

a
it
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 h
e

a
d
 t

e
a
c
h

e
r,

 p
o
lic

e
 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
  

- 
a
ll 

p
a
rt

ie
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
/a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 

          P
o
s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e

d
b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 
H

A
S

V
O

, 
th

e
 A

S
B

 t
e
a
m

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

e
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

re
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
n
s
io

n
s
. 

         L
e
tt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
a
n
k
s
 a

n
d
 

p
re

s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 

a
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g
in

g
 t

h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

fr
o
m

 H
C

M
.  

 

79



 
4
8
 

  
g
o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 
- 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 n

o
ti
fy

 p
a
re

n
ts

 
a
n
d
 p

u
p
ils

 a
b
o
u
t 
m

e
n

u
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

d
is

p
la

y
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 S
ta

n
le

y
 R

o
a

d
 t

e
n

s
io

n
s
: 

- 
jo

in
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 A

n
ti
-S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

T
e
a
m

, 
p
o
lic

e
, 

th
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 

h
o
ld

e
r 

a
n

d
 S

o
m

a
li 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 (

H
A

S
V

O
) 

- 
a
g
re

e
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

h
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
- 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
s
io

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
s
ip

a
te

d
. 

 2
0
0
9
 f

a
r-

ri
g

h
t 

d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

o
n

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
e
n

tr
a
l 
M

o
s
q

u
e
 (

H
C

M
):

 
- 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
te

w
a
rd

s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e

d
 

jo
in

tl
y 

w
it
h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 p
o

lic
e
 a

n
d
 H

C
M

 
- 

jo
in

t 
p
re

s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 

- 
g
o

ld
 g

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
  

- 
k
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e
s
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

d
  

- 
H

C
M

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 d

ra
w

in
g
 u

p
 a

 C
o

d
e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u
c
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
ll 

fo
r 

c
a

lm
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

- 
D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
U

n
it
y
 

- 
U

n
it
y
 W

a
lk

 
 

 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
–

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 

 E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 

 

80



 
4
9
 

3
.1

3
 E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 f

o
ru

m
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
ll 

e
q

u
a

lit
y 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 /
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 m

a
rg

in
a

lis
e
d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 a
ll 

s
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d

?
  

 

�
 

C
E

G
 

�
 

Y
o

u
th

 P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

�
 

A
g
e
 U

K
 H

a
rr

o
w

  
�
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 F

o
ru

m
 

�
 

H
A

D
 

�
 

In
te

rf
a
it
h
 F

o
ru

m
 

�
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

�
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 

�
 

C
a
re

rs
 F

o
ru

m
 

�
 

H
a
te

 C
ri
m

e
 F

o
ru

m
 

�
 

V
C

S
 F

o
ru

m
 

  

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 w

e
ll 

d
o

e
s
 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
k
n
o

w
 i
ts

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
?
 

  

�
 

E
x
p
e
ri

a
n
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 

�
 

V
it
a
lit

y 
p
ro

fi
le

s
 

�
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 p

o
rt

a
l 

�
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 E

q
IA

s
 

 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

re
g
u
la

r 
e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

 w
id

e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

?
  

 

�
 

S
E

S
 

�
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

�
 

C
a
re

rs
 w

e
e
k
 

�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

o
a
d
s
h
o

w
s
 

�
 

R
e
p

u
ta

ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

�
 

L
e
ts

 t
a
lk

 e
v
e
n
ts

 
�
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 m

a
rg

in
a
lis

e
d
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

d
 a

n
d
 

e
n

a
b
le

d
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

?
  

 

�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 

P
e
o
p
le

 (
H

A
D

) 

 
�
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 f

o
ru

m
s
 

a
n

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
s
/e

n
g
a

g
e
s
 w

it
h
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
y
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
t 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
t 
la

rg
e
  

81



 
5
0
 

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 a
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
ie

s
 u

s
e
d

?
  

  

Y
e
s
, 
th

e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
, 
o
n

lin
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 
fo

c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 e

v
e

n
ts

 

 
 

 
 

H
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
h
a

n
g
e

d
?
 O

n
 w

h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
/b

a
s
is

?
 

  

�
 

M
e

a
ls

 o
n
 w

h
e

e
ls

 
�
 

F
a
ir

e
r 

C
h
a

rg
in

g
 

�
 

T
a
x
i 
C

a
rd

s
 

�
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

T
a
x
 S

c
h
e
m

e
  

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
/ 

tr
a
n
s
la

ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
?
 

  

R
e
v
ie

w
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 

 

E
ff

e
c

ti
v
e
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

 
3
.1

4
 K

e
y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 l
is

te
n

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
m

 a
n
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
ll 

th
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 

d
is

a
g

g
re

g
a
te

d
?
  

  

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

T
ra

c
k
e
r,

 R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
P

a
n
e
l,
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

o
rt

a
l 
a
n
d

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 S
o
m

e
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

c
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
g
g

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

U
s
e
r 

d
a
ta

 b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

y
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

?
 

  

P
o
lic

in
g
 S

u
rv

e
y
; 
n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
d
a
ta

, 
E

x
p
e
ri

a
n
 

d
a
ta

 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 i
s
 t
h
is

 a
n
a
ly

s
e

d
?
  

J
A

G
 l
o
o
k
s
 a

t 
d

a
ta

 s
e
ts

 t
o
 g

e
t 

jo
in

e
d
 u

p
 

 
�
 

In
c
lu

d
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 i
n
 o

u
r 

R
e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

s
u
rv

e
y 

a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 t
re

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 

ta
k
e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
f 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

  

82



 
5
1
 

  
p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 

b
y 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
, 

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a

r?
  

  

 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 o

r 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d
 t
o
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
?
  

  

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

ig
h
t 
to

 
C

h
a

lle
n

g
e
, 

L
e
ts

 T
a

lk
, 

E
n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
?
  

  

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 y
o

u
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 d
e
c
is

io
n

s
 

a
b

o
u
t 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 o

r 
d

iv
is

iv
e
 

is
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 a

 w
a

y
 t
h

a
t,
 w

h
e

re
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 

a
n

d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
?
 

  

C
o
m

m
s
 –

 w
e

b
, 
n

e
w

s
le

tt
e
rs

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
P

e
o
p
le

 e
tc

. 
  

  

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
–

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

C
a
re

 
 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 i
n

to
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

 
3
.1

5
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
-m

a
k
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 e

q
u
a
lit

y 
a

n
a
ly

s
is

 (
L
in

k
s
 t
o
 2

.7
, 

2
.1

6
, 

3
.4

) 
T

h
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rs
to

o
d
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 e
x
a

m
p
le

s
 

�
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

 
�
 

In
c
lu

d
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

83



 
5
2
 

o
f 

p
o
lic

y
 o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 

a
m

e
n
d
e

d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

?
  

    

�
 

M
o
W

 
�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 A
rt

s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

�
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 

�
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

  

 
 

 
 

D
o
 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

ta
k
e
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

?
 

  

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 –

 E
q
IA

's
 

m
a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

e
x
p
la

in
) 

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q
IA

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 A
d
u
lt
s
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 –

 f
o
u
r 

k
e
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

a
n

e
ls

 (
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 

Im
p
a
c
t)

 

e
q

u
a
lit

y 
m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 i
n
 

o
u

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
o
lic

y
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

a
n

a
ly

s
e
 t

h
is

 i
n
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
p
a
tt

e
rn

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e

rn
 

  

 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
li

v
e
ry

 
 

3
.1

6
 I

n
d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 3

.5
, 
3
.6

) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 i
t 
c
le

a
r 

w
h
o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e

rs
 a

re
?
 

    

�
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

T
O

R
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 O

u
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
) 

�
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

�
 

D
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 n

e
w

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 u

s
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

 

 
 

 
 

H
a
v
e
 g

a
p
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
w

h
o
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 w

h
y
?
 

 

A
 T

e
s
t 

o
f 

R
e
le

v
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

to
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
is

 a
n

d
 w

h
a
t 

s
te

p
s
/o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
. 

 
�
 

D
is

a
g
g

re
g
a
te

 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 t

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 s

e
t 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 

  

84



 
5
3
 

 

 
 

 
 

H
a
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 

c
h
a

n
g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e

?
  

  

�
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

 

 
 

 
 

D
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

p
a
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o

w
 p

a
s
t 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 s

e
t 

n
e

w
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
?
  

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

a
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
e
t 
n
e

w
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 –

 E
.g

. 
N

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h

e
 

G
a
p
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e

re
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

d
is

a
g

g
re

g
a
te

d
 

w
h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
n
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
?

 
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 (
S

P
R

) 
s
h
o

w
s
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

 
 

 
 

Is
 i
t 
c
le

a
r 

w
h
o
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e

rs
 a

re
?
 

      

�
 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

T
O

R
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 O

u
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
O

u
r 

S
to

ry
);

 E
x
p
e

ri
a

n
 d

a
ta

 
�
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

G
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 e

.g
. 
T

e
n
a

n
ts

 a
n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
  

�
 

  
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
 

3
.1

7
 T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

h
o

w
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y,

 w
it
h
o

u
t 

la
rg

e
 d

is
c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

(L
in

k
s
 t

o
 3

.9
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a

n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

 t
h
a
t 

In
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
n
d
le

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

 
 

85



 
5
4
 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
m

a
rg

in
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
?
  

  

m
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 s
h

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 

o
u
tp

u
ts

 a
n

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

m
e
e
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 c

lie
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 o

ft
e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 (
e
.g

. 
y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

) 
a
n
d
 

m
a
rg

in
a
lis

e
d
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 

 A
n

y 
u
n
d

e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

n
o
rm

s
. 

 
 T

h
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 w

ill
 d

e
p
e

n
d
 o

n
 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 

o
p
e
ra

te
. 

 W
h
e
re

 u
n
d

e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

th
a
t 
K

ie
r 

h
e
ld

 u
n
ti
l 
m

id
 2

0
1

2
 f

o
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 &

 M
a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
) 

th
e
n
 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

re
-t

e
n
d
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.
  

  

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e

re
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
  

  

G
iv

e
n
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
n
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
, 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
a
 

C
o
u

n
c
il-

w
id

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
c
a

n
 b

e
 r

e
la

te
d
 

g
e
n
e

ra
lly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
h
o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

e
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 p
ro

c
u
re

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

e
.g

. 
a
d
o

p
ti
o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y 

C
o
ra

m
 T

ru
s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
g
a

rd
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
 

86



 
5
5
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
g
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
) 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
n

y 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o

w
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
?
  

  

G
iv

e
n
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
n
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
, 

tr
e

n
d
s
 i
n
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 b

e
 r

e
la

te
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 In
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
if
 

a
n
d
 h

o
w

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
re

 r
e
la

te
d
 t

o
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

, 
p
ro

c
u

re
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
 

 
 

C
a
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 /

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 
g
iv

e
 a

n
y
 g

o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
n
y
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

’ 
e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d
 

b
y 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
?
  

  

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 f

o
r 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 

a
n
d
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 

u
n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
  

(p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 ‘
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
’)
  

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 R

e
a

b
le

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 a

 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

(a
ft

e
r 

a
 t
e

n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
) 

to
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 t
a
ilo

r-
m

a
d

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
lie

n
ts

 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

b
e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 t
o
 

h
e
lp

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
?
 

  

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 c

o
m

m
it
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
in

g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

th
ir

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

le
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
s
. 

 
 S

u
c
h
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
v
it
e

d
 t
o
 j
o
in

 t
h
e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 

87



 
5
6
 

(w
w

w
.b

u
rr

o
w

s
.c

o
.u

k
/h

a
rr

o
w

).
 T

h
is

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 s

o
u
rc

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n
v
it
e
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 d

a
y
s
 (

e
.g

. 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

) 
a
n

d
 i
n
v
it
e
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 f
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

  
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f

e
d
-i
n
to

 t
h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 b

y
 E

a
lin

g
 C

V
S

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
th

ir
d
 

s
e
c
to

r.
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
re

 
s
u
p
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

 B
ig

 L
o
tt

e
ry

 f
u
n
d
e

d
 l
o
c
a
l 
3

rd
  

s
e
c
to

r 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

In
te

re
s
t 
C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

 H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
a
rt

n
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 c

h
a

ri
ty

 I
n
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 a

w
a

rd
-w

in
n

in
g
 

s
h
o
p
4
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 l
in

k
s
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

le
d
 (

a
n

d
 o

th
e
r)

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

w
h
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 

c
lie

n
ts

 /
 e

n
d
-u

s
e
rs

 

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 
3
.1

8
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

a
ll 

u
s
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 m

a
rg

in
a

lis
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

(L
in

k
s
 t

o
 3

.1
7
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
n

y 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o

w
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
?
  

   

E
x
c
e
ll

e
n

t 
ra

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

w
e
b

s
it

e
  

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 w

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b

y
 R

o
y
a
l 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
in

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
th

e
 B

lin
d
 (

R
N

IB
) 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

le
v
e

l 
3
* 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
ra

ti
n

g
. 

 
 

 
 

88



 
5
7
 

A
c
c

e
s
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
A

 m
ys

te
ry

 s
h
o
p

p
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
9
 t

o
 J

a
n
u

a
ry

 2
0
1

0
 

s
h
o
w

e
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
re

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

fo
u
r 

c
h
a
n

n
e
ls

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

–
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
8
. 

 
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 f

o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
 f

iv
e
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

. 
 A

d
e
q

u
a
te

 p
a
rk

in
g
 w

e
n
t 

u
p
 

fr
o
m

 2
3
%

 t
o
 1

0
0
%

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 s

ig
n
a
g

e
 t

o
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 t
o
ile

ts
 f

ro
m

 5
1
%

 t
o
 5

6
%

. 
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 a

re
 t

h
e
 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
?
  

  

O
u
r 

H
a

rr
o
w

 O
u
r 

S
to

ry
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
n
y
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

’ 
e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d
 

a
n

d
 a

c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
?
 

 

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 S
u

rv
e

y
s
 

A
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

  
 

 

H
u

m
a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 

 
3
.1

9
 P

e
o

p
le

 b
e
lie

v
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

re
a
te

d
 f

a
ir
ly

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
ir

 h
u
m

a
n
 r

ig
h
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
te

d
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
n

y 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
?
  

  

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
a
ta

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
n

y
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

’ 
e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d
 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 

d
a
ta

 

 
 

89



 
5
8
 

a
n

d
 a

c
te

d
 u

p
o
n
?
 

 
 

E
x
c
e

lle
n
t 

–
 S

k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 
3
.2

0
 P

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e
d
 e

q
u
a

lit
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

 c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

a
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 

3
.2

3
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

, 
in

n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

a
n

d
 h

o
lis

ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
 

 

�
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
o

p
le

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
  

 
 
�

 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 g
o
o

d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
fl
e
x
ib

le
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

c
a
re

e
r 

p
a
th

w
a
y
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
b

a
rr

ie
rs

 
a
n

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
?
 

  

F
le

x
ib

le
 W

o
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 

 �
 

C
a
re

e
r 

B
re

a
k
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

�
 

C
o
m

p
re

s
s
e
d
 W

o
rk

in
g
 H

o
u

rs
 

�
 

F
le

x
ib

le
 W

o
rk

in
g
 P

o
lic

y
 

�
 

F
le

x
it
im

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 r

o
le

s
 

�
 

P
a
re

n
ta

l 
L

e
a
v
e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

�
 

R
e
m

o
te

 W
o
rk

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 

�
 

F
le

x
ib

le
 R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

�
 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

n
d
 F

ix
e
d
 T

e
rm

 W
o
rk

e
rs

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 

�
 

C
a
re

e
r 

g
ra

d
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 r

o
le

s
 

 U
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 

 �
 

S
p
ri
n

g
b
o

a
rd

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

ru
n
 i
n
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 b

u
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 

 
 

90



 
5
9
 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

w
e
 r

u
n
 a

g
a
in

 
 �
 

C
M

S
/D

M
S

 d
id

 n
o
t 
ru

n
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 d

u
e
 

to
 s

p
e

n
d
in

g
 f

re
e

z
e
, 
a
ls

o
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
. 

 

L
o

c
a
l 

L
a
b

o
u

r 
M

a
rk

e
t 

 
3
.2

1
 T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

to
w

a
rd

s
 g

re
a
te

r 
e
q

u
a
lit

y 
in

 i
ts

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

ro
fi
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 
u
n
d
e

r-
re

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

t 
a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

th
e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 h

a
v
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
e
t?

  
 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
im

s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

th
a
t 
re

fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y,

 b
a
s
e

d
 

o
n
 C

e
n
s
u
s
 d

a
ta

. 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e

re
 o

f 
th

e
m

 b
e

in
g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

?
  

  

T
h
e

re
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

lig
h
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

A
M

E
 a

n
d
 D

is
a

b
le

d
 

s
ta

ff
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

3
 y

e
a
rs

, 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a

rd
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
. 

 
 

 
 

H
o

w
 d

o
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
s
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 u

n
d
e
r-

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

?
  

 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
c
u

rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
; 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
e
in

g
 

ta
k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

d
e

liv
e
ry

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 

n
e
x
t 

P
e

o
p

le
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 i
n
 t
h

e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 

a
n

d
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
?
 

 

S
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a

g
e
r 

d
iv

e
rs

it
y 

w
ill

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 

in
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

in
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 

p
la

n
s
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

a
t 

th
a
t 

le
v
e
l 

is
 v

e
ry

 l
o
w

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

lit
tl
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 f

o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

iv
e
rs

it
y
. 

 
�
 

M
a
k
in

g
 a

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 

G
ro

u
p
 –

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

A
n
n

u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
 

E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

R
e

p
o
rt

 
a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 t

h
e
 S

ta
ff

 
S

u
rv

e
y
. 

    

 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

 
3
.2

2
 A

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 a

d
v
e

rs
e
 t
re

n
d
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

d
a
ta

. 
1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
W

h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

91



 
6
0
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

m
a
k
e
?
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 
u
p

d
a
te

d
 r

e
g
u

la
rl

y
?
 

  

A
n
n
u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 q

u
a

rt
e
rl

y 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

b
o
a
rd

 m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
, 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f

o
r 

R
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 o

n
ly

 a
s
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 

to
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e
 t
re

n
d
s
?
  

  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f

ro
m

 
m

in
o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s
 t

o
 m

o
n

it
o
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

n
y
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 

tr
e
n

d
s
. 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
ly

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
?
 

  

A
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

s
e
t 
u
p
 t

o
 l
o

o
k
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
im

ila
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 
s
u
rv

e
y 

fo
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 
 

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q

u
a

lit
y 

ta
s
k
 g

ro
u
p
s
 m

e
e
t 
to

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

lt
h
o

u
g
h
 l
e
s
s
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 

s
o
m

e
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

 

 
 

 

H
R

 P
o

li
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 

 
3
.2

3
 A

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
s
 r

e
a
d
ily

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

ro
m

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 
(L

in
k
s
 t

o
 

3
.2

0
) 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

H
a
v
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 t
a

n
g
ib

le
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 

a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
?
  

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

ta
n
g

ib
le

 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 

 
 

92



 
6
1
 

 

S
ta

ff
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

3
.2

4
 T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 h

ig
h
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

D
o
 s

ta
ff

 f
e
e
l 
e
n
g

a
g
e

d
?

  
  

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

ta
ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
e
n
g
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
h

ie
v
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
 w

e
re

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1

1
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

d
o
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 s

a
y
?
  

   

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1

1
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y 

c
o
m

p
a
re

 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it
h
 a

ll-
s
e
c
to

r 
b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

s
, 
fo

r 
s
o
m

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

 R
e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

fa
ll 

m
a
rg

in
a
lly

 b
e
lo

w
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

s
. 

  

 
 

 
 

A
re

 s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
?
  

   

F
u
ll 

a
n

d
 i
n
te

ri
m

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
n
n
u

a
lly

, 
in

 a
lt
e
rn

a
te

 y
e
a
rs

. 
 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
n

y 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o

w
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
?
  

 

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
v
e
 

re
m

a
in

e
d
 f

a
ir
ly

 s
ta

ti
c
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 

fe
w

 
y
e

a
rs

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
n
y
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n

c
e
s
 

b
e
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
s
e
d
?
 

   

S
ta

ff
 e

x
p
e

ri
e
n
c
e
s
 a

re
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

w
o
rk

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

a
n
a
ly

s
e
d
 b

y
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
. 

 
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
n

a
ly

s
e
s
 a

re
 t

a
k
e
n
 

in
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

in
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
. 

 
 

 

W
o

rk
in

g
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
 

93



 
6
2
 

3
.2

5
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

D
o
 s

ta
ff

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
c
u
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t?

  

R
e
c
e

n
t 
s
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
s
o

u
g
h
t 

v
ie

w
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 e
n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

o
c
c
u

p
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a
lt
h
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

ta
ff

?
 

  

Y
e
s
 –

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h
 a

n
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
u
n
s
e
lli

n
g
, 

fi
tn

e
s
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
s
  

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 

 

 

E
q

u
a
l 

P
a
y
 

 
3
.2

6
 A

c
ti

o
n

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

q
u

a
l 
p

a
y
 i
s
 f

u
ll

y
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll,
 i
s
 t
h
e

re
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

th
a
t 

m
e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

re
 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 e

q
u
a
l 
p

a
y
 e

q
u
a
l 

fo
r 

w
o
rk

 (
s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

n
y
 

m
a
jo

r 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 l
e

g
a
l 
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

)?
  

   

T
h
e
 S

in
g
le

 S
ta

tu
s
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
4
 t

o
 h

a
rm

o
n

is
e
 t

h
e
 

te
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d

it
io

n
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
p
a

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
 f

a
ir
 

a
n
d
 e

q
u
it
a

b
le

. 
 E

q
u
a
l 
p

a
y
 i
s
 e

n
s
u

re
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n

d
u
c
ti
n

g
 

jo
b
 e

v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

ro
le

s
. 

  

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 /
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
?
 

   

A
n
 E

q
u
a
l 
P

a
y
 A

u
d
it
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 2

0
0
7
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
s
u
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 

u
n
ju

s
ti
fi
e
d
 p

a
y
 i
n
e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
. 

 A
n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

u
d
it
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 

la
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r.

 

 
 

 

94



 
6
3
 

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 B

u
ll

y
in

g
  

 
3
.2

7
 H

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

u
lly

in
g
 a

t 
w

o
rk

 a
re

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
n
d
 m

o
re

 s
ta

ff
 s

a
y 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 t

re
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 d

ig
n
it
y 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t.

 S
ta

ff
 a

re
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e

n
t 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 r
o
b

u
s
t 
p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 b

u
lly

in
g
 a

t 
w

o
rk

. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

h
o

w
 t
h

e
re

 h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

–
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

, 
p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o

n
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
, 

a
n

d
 q

u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 

d
a
ta

?
 

 

�
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
E

q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
�
 

S
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

fa
ir
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

e
q
u
a

lit
y 

re
m

a
in

e
d
 b

ro
a

d
ly

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
. 

�
 

D
ig

n
it
y 

a
t 

w
o
rk

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 

 
 

  

A
p

p
ra

is
a
ls

 
 

3
.2

8
 M

a
n

a
g
e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 m
a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
ff

 
a
c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u

ri
n
g
 

e
q

u
a
lit

y 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
?
  

 

M
a

n
a

g
e
rs

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

d
a
y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 

IP
A

D
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
  

 
 

 
 

Is
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

e
in

g
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d

?
 

 

Y
e
s
, 

e
.g

. 
th

e
 R

e
w

a
rd

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
o

g
n
it
io

n
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

R
E

A
T

E
 A

w
a
rd

s
 

 
 

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 

3
.2

9
 C

o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
q
u
a
lit

y
 w

h
e
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e

y
 u

s
e
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
. 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

k
n
o
w

le
d

g
e
a
b

le
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

tr
a
in

e
d
 s

ta
ff

 w
h
o
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

H
o

w
 w

a
s
 t

h
is

 d
o

n
e
 a

n
d
 

w
h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

?
 

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 /

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /

 L
in

k
s
 

W
h
a
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

ill
 t

h
is

 
m

a
k
e
?
 

W
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e

?
 

 
 

 
 

W
h
a
t 

c
h
a
n

g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

e
 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
e
q

u
a
lit

y 
is

s
u
e
s
, 

 
 

95



 
6
4
 

a
b

o
u
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a
n

y
 

e
q

u
a
lit

y 
tr

a
in

in
g
?
  

 

th
e
 l
a
w

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
o
 a

p
p
ly

 t
h
e
ir
 ‘
D

u
e
 

R
e
g

a
rd

’.
  

 
 

 
 

D
o
 s

ta
ff

 f
e
e
l 
th

e
ir
 s

k
ill

s
 h

a
v
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d

?
  

   

R
e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
a
n
 H

R
D

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o

w
 

7
0
%

 o
f 

re
s
p
o

n
d
e

n
ts

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
it
y,

 a
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

q
u
e

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
tt
e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 s
ta

ff
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
la

te
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 w
it
h
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

?
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

A
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

n
s
w

e
r 

q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

c
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
?
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

Is
 t
h
e
re

 a
n

y 
fe

e
d

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 
u
s
e

rs
?
 

  

 

 
  

 

96



 
6
5
 

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

 3
 –

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 1
 –

 D
e
liv

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g

 t
o
 a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 c
a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e

d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y 
2
0
1

6
: 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

7
0
%

 o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 u
s
e

rs
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e

c
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 (
o
f 

a
ll 

c
lie

n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

6
8
%

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it
h
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 o

r 
w

it
h
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
, 

b
y 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

7
0
%

 o
f 

c
lie

n
ts

 d
o
 n

o
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
a

b
le

m
e
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
   

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

8
0
%

 o
f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 s

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
 w

it
h
 o

r 
w

it
h

o
u
t 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
, 
b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 (

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 s
c
o
re

 o
f 

0
.9

 a
n

d
 1

.1
 -

 w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 
th

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 w

h
it
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-w

h
it
e
 c

lie
n
ts

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
lik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
).

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 w

e
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 R
e
n
te

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
(3

5
0
) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t
h

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

8
%

 w
h
e

e
lc

h
a
ir
 s

ta
n
d
a

rd
 h

o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 (

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 

9
0
%

 e
v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r)

 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
d

e
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

9
0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

o
u
r 

b
u
s
 s

to
p
s
 D

D
A

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 

  

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 2
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 o
u

r 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
a
re

n
ti
n
g

 r
o
le

 a
n

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e

d
e
d
 i
f,
 b

y 
2
0
1

6
: 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n
tr

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y 
7

0
%

 o
f 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
o
ta

l 
u

5
s
 i
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 –

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 f

ro
m

 d
e
p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a
s
, 

lo
n

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
, 

c
a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
, 

B
M

E
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 u

p
 D

ir
e
c
t 

P
a

ym
e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 5

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
  

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d
 t

h
e

 g
a
p
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 F

o
u

n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

2
0
%

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 

97



 
6
6
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 R

e
c
e

p
ti
o
n
 y

e
a

r 
in

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 P

V
Is

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 D

fE
 p

u
b

lis
h
 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 E

Y
F

S
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 r
e
s
u

lt
s
. 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 w
it

h
 S

E
N

 
 

1
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p
ils

 w
it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
n
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

ir
 p

e
e
rs

, 
b
a
s
e

d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 

4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 
  

  
 2

. 
T

h
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 (

S
E

N
)/

n
o

n
-S

E
N

 g
a
p
 –

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

 C
 G

C
S

E
 i
n
c
. 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 G

C
S

E
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 f
ro

m
 s

p
e
c
if

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

 1
1
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

a
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 m

in
o
ri

ty
 e

th
n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 R

e
a
d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 
b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri

b
b
e

a
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 
c
) 

%
 A

n
y 

O
th

e
r 

B
la

c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 

R
e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 
d
) 

%
 A

n
y 

O
th

e
r 

W
h
it
e
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
+

 i
n
 

R
e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 
 1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

a
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 A

fr
ic

a
n
 m

in
o
ri

ty
 e

th
n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 
b
) 

%
 B

la
c
k
 C

a
ri

b
b
e

a
n
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 
c
) 

%
 A

n
y 

O
th

e
r 

B
la

c
k
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 
d
) 

%
 A

n
y 

O
th

e
r 

W
h
it
e
 B

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 g
ro

u
p
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 p

u
p
ils

) 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h
 &

 m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 4

 
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 e
li

g
ib

le
 f

o
r 

F
re

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
M

e
a
ls

 
 

1
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h

o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n

d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 
b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 R

e
a

d
in

g
 &

 W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 
2
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

fr
e
e
 s

c
h

o
o
l 
m

e
a
ls

 a
n

d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
, 
b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
* 

to
 C

 g
ra

d
e
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 G

C
S

E
s
 

 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t 
g

a
p

 f
o

r 
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

98



 
6
7
 

 
a
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 L
o
o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
 y

e
a

r 
p
lu

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 
F

o
u

n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g

e
 (

a
n
n

u
a
l)

 
b
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 L
o
o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
 y

e
a

r 
p
lu

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
+

 a
t 
K

S
2
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 

(a
n
n

u
a
l)
 

c
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 L
o
o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

1
 y

e
a

r 
p
lu

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

+
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
K

S
4
 (

a
n
n

u
a
l)

 
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
N

E
E

T
 t
o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n
 2

0
%

 f
o
r 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e
 o

ff
e
n
d
e

d
 a

n
d
 t

o
 n

o
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n
 5

0
%

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
6
 –

 1
8
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t 

a
t 
9

7
%

 b
y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 3
 -

 M
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 i
n

e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d

 d
e
p

ri
v
a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o
rk

in
g

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f,

 b
y 

2
0

1
6
: 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 o

b
e
s
e
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6
 t

o
 b

e
 b

e
lo

w
 o

r 
in

-l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
1
9
.2

%
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 

M
o
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
, 

y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n
 s

p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o
 

1
0
0
%

 o
f 

P
E

 t
e
a
c
h
e

rs
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

A
d
u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 1

9
.5

%
 i
n
 2

0
1
3

-1
4

. 
  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 l
e
is

u
re

 (
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

9
0
%

 e
v
e
ry

 y
e
a

r)
 

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 t
h

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
2
%

 o
f 

fa
m

ily
-s

iz
e

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
s
o
c
ia

l 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 1

2
5

0
 c

a
s
e
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

1
5
0

 h
o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 (

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

, 
a
d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 o

r 
c
a
re

rs
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
) 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 H
o

u
s
e
 w

a
rm

e
rs

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

y 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

M
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 p

re
g
n

a
n
c
y
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
%

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

F
o
o

d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 f

o
o
d
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

7
0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
) 

99



 
6
8
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

a
rb

o
n
 F

o
o
tp

ri
n
t 

(t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
%

 b
y 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
) 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 4
 -

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n

 t
im

e
s
 o

f 
e

c
o
n

o
m

ic
 h

a
rd

s
h
ip

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e

d
e
d
 i
f:

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

J
S

A
 c

la
im

a
n
ts

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
4
 (

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 1

.6
%

) 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 j
o

b
 b

ro
k
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 
8

0
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
to

 w
o
rk

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 

 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
a
l,
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

5
0
0
 H

a
rr

o
w

 e
n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

b
y 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
  

 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 v

a
c
a

n
c
y
 r

a
te

 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

B
a
s
e

lin
e
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1

2
 A

M
R

 8
.9

5
%

) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

1
8
.5

%
 �
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
���
��
	
��
�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
�M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 5
 –

 P
ro

te
c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e

o
p

le
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
c
ri

m
e

, 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
u

s
e
 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f:
  

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
e
a
t 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 s

e
e
n
 b

y 
M

u
lt
i 
A

g
e
n

c
y 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

 b
e
lo

w
 

2
5
%

 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

,
	
��
�
�
	
��
	
��
�
��
	
�
+�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
	
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
�-
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�.
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
$
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

9
9
 %

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ts

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 (

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

4
) 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
p
a
ir

 s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

t 
th

re
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
d
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 a
d
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 h
a

rm
 (

m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

8
0
%

 t
o
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
e
e
lin

g
 s

a
fe

) 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h

e
 T

e
n

a
n
t,

 L
e
a
s
e

h
o

ld
e
r 

&
 R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
a
s
e
 

100



 
6
9
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 7
5
%

 i
n
 2

0
1
1
 t

o
 8

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
4
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 8

 a
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rk

 u
s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 6
 -

 M
in

im
is

e
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

f 
b

u
d
g

e
t 

c
u
ts

 o
n

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 (

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
) 

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f:

 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 

a
re

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 E

q
u

a
lit

y 
Im

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(E

q
IA

) 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

re
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

n
 E

q
IA

 
A

ll 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 E
q
IA

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 7
 –

 C
e
le

b
ra

te
 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 s
o
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u
g

h
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 c
o
h

e
s
iv

e
 p

la
c
e

 w
h
e

re
 

p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
 g

e
t 
o

n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
f:

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
u
lt
u

ra
l 
c
a
le

n
d

a
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
d
e

liv
e
ri

n
g
 

te
n
 e

v
e

n
ts

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

H
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

7
7
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
 t
h
a
t 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
re

a
 (

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 

re
p
u
ta

ti
o

n
 t
ra

c
k
e
r 

in
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
) 

 

O
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 8
 -

 D
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 t
h
a

t 
fe

e
ls

 v
a

lu
e
d

, 
re

s
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

iv
e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

e
 

s
e

rv
e

 

D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
W

e
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d

 i
f,
 b

y
 2

0
1
6
: 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 
‘H

a
rr

o
w

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
in

g
 a

n
 e

q
u
a
l 

o
p

p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

r’
 b

y 
1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 (

S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

e
y 

2
0

1
1
 –

 5
9
%

) 
a
n
d
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

ta
ff
 w

it
h
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
  

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 ‘
tr

e
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 f

a
ir

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

a
t 

H
a
rr

o
w

’ 
b
y
 1

0
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

(S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
1
1
 –

 6
2
%

) 
a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 s

ta
ff
 w

it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 f

e
e
l 
th

a
t 

‘S
ys

te
m

s
 f

o
r 

re
w

a
rd

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

g
n
it
io

n
 i
n
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
re

 f
a
ir
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
a
re

n
t’
 b

y
 

1
0
%

 b
y 

M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1
6
 (

S
ta

ff
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
1
1
 –

 3
0

%
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 

A
ll 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 A

s
ia

n
 M

in
o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 (
B

A
M

E
) 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 (

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 

4
2
%

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
) 

101



 
7
0
 

A
ll 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
  

(t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

) 
A

ll 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 B

A
M

E
  
(t

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

2
0
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
) 

A
ll 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 w

o
m

e
n
  

(t
a

rg
e
t 

o
f 

5
0
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

) 
A

ll 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 w
h

o
 a

re
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 t

o
 (

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

3
%

–
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

) 

A
ll 

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 

A
ll 

n
e

w
s
 S

ta
rt

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
d

a
to

ry
 E

q
u
a
lit

y 
a

n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y 

E
-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 M

o
d

u
le

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
 

 
 

102



Agenda Item 13
Pages 103 to 124

103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



124

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	8 Procurement strategy update
	Revised P&F report - appendix Structures pptnm1 (2) pptOCT13 pptanon

	9 Business Continuity Update
	10 Corporate Equalities Objectives - Annual Progress Report
	Annual Equalities Progress Report 2012-13

	13 ICT Service

